
Monthly Meeting  
Avon Board of Education 

34 Simsbury Road, Avon, Connecticut 

Tuesday, June 16, 2020, 7:00 pm  via Remote Meeting 

To join Zoom meeting, click on link below: 
https://avonk12ctus.zoom.us/j/85190275139?pwd=ZlMycUdvWkxJZXliTGJjZVoyaWpzZz09 

To dial in, call: 
(646) 558-8656 or (301) 715-8592

Meeting ID: 851 9027 5139 
Password: 052751 

If you have a comment you would like to share with the Board of Education, please send an email with your 
comment no later than 4:00 pm, Monday, June 15, 2020 to smoy@avon.k12.ct.us.  Please include your full 
name and address.  Emails will be acknowledged during the Public Comment portion of the Board meeting. 

Agenda 
I. Call to Order

II. Pledge of Allegiance

III. Presentations
A. Avon Achiever

1. Maleah Cogle, Gabriella Gavern, Julia Olander, Avika Saxena, Charlotte Sohn, Julia
Steremberg (TBS Students) – in recognition for volunteering their time last summer to
beautify Thompson Brook School.  The students landscaped the TBS patio area outside the
cafeteria to make it a desirable spot for students to eat lunch and spend time.  They worked
in the hot sun, with enthusiasm, weeding, cleaning, raking and fixing up the area.

2. Brendan Lynch and Nate Strick (TBS Staff) – in recognition for going above and beyond to
provide technology instruction and support to all at the school during this time of remote
learning.   They have researched and shared new programs, created numerous user-friendly
tutorials, hosted podcasts, and spent countless hours working with individuals and small
groups. Their leadership have been calming and constant with every step in remote learning.

B. Avon Board of Education Student Representative
1. Addisen Ganiats

IV. Approval of Minutes
A. Board of Education Regular Monthly Meeting, May 19, 2020

V. Communication from Public
If you have a comment you would like to share, please email your comment no later than 4:00 pm, Monday, June 15,
2020, to smoy@avon.k12.ct.us.  Please include your full name and address.

Mission Statement 
Our mission is to inspire in each student a joy and passion for learning and a 

commitment to excellence, personal integrity, and social responsibility. 

1

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://avonk12ctus.zoom.us/j/85190275139?pwd%3DZlMycUdvWkxJZXliTGJjZVoyaWpzZz09&sa=D&ust=1592333374209000&usg=AOvVaw2jt0Rht_W5yS_QWgNYj3b5
mailto:smoy@avon.k12.ct.us
mailto:smoy@avon.k12.ct.us


Agenda Board of Education Regular Meeting – June 16, 2020 
P a g e | 2 

VI. Items of Information and Proposals
A. Student Representative Report –Addisen Ganiats & Alvin Guo, AHS Student Representatives
B. Financial Report – Heather Michaud, Director of Fiscal Affairs

VII. Committees & Liaison Reports
A. Committee Reports

1. Curriculum & Professional Practices – Jackie Blea, Chair
2. Finance – Jay Spivak, Chair
3. Negotiations – Jason Indomenico, Chair
4. Policy – Laura Young, Chair

B. Liaison Report
1. Board Representative to Capital Region Education Council – Jackie Blea, Board Rep.

VIII. Chair’s Report – Debra Chute, Board Chair
A. Board Chair Update

1. Equity in Schools

IX. Superintendent’s Report – Dr. Bridget Heston Carnemolla
A. Hiring Report
B. Enrollment Report
C. Strategic Plan Update
D. Updates
E. List of Donations and Gifts for 2019-2020

X. Consent Calendar
A. 19-20/64 Approval of Budget Transfers
B. 19-20/65 Approval of AHS Friends of Baseball donation of a scoreboard valued at $3,360.00

XI. New Business
A. 19-20/66 K-6 ELA, Grade 12 ELA, Grades 9-12 Mathematics/Business, Grade 7 Science, and

Grades 10-12 Social Studies Primary Instructional Materials 

B. 19-20/67 Lease Purchase Agreement for Instructional Computers
C. 19-20/68  FY 2019/2020 Year End Encumbrances 

D. 19-20/69 Policy 6146 Graduation Requirements, First Read
E. 19-20/70 2020-2021 Board of Education Meeting Dates
F. 19-20/71 School Reopening Plans
G. 19-20/72 Ratification of Superintendent’s Contract for 7/1/2020 - 6/30/2023

XII. Communication from Avon Board of Education Members

XIII. Adjournment

NOTE:  If there is any person interested in an item that does not appear on the agenda, please arrange to speak with the Chair or 
the Superintendent of Schools before the meeting to discuss the matter.  

2



Monthly Meeting  
Avon Board of Education 

34 Simsbury Road, Avon, Connecticut 

Tuesday, May 19, 2020, 7:00 pm  via Remote Meeting 

Avon Board of Education 
34 Simsbury, Avon, Connecticut  06001 

Via Zoom 

Minutes 

Attendance 
Members Present:  Jackie Blea; David Cavanaugh; Debra Chute; Jeffrey S. Fleischman; Jason Indomenico; 
Bogdan Oprica; Lisa Seminara; Jay Spivak; Laura Young 

Members Absent: none 

Administration Present:  Dr. Bridget Heston Carnemolla, Superintendent of Schools; Roberto Medic, 
Director of Human Resources; Heather Michaud, Director of Fiscal Affairs; Donna Nestler-Rusack, 
Assistant Superintendent 

I. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order by Deb Chute, Board Chair, at 7:00 pm.

II. Pledge of Allegiance
After the Pledge of Allegiance, a roll call of Board members was also taken.  Chair Chute read the
District’s Mission Statement.

III. Presentations
A. Avon Achiever

1. Walden Yan (AHS Student) – in recognition for having obtained the highest level of
academic achievement and thus named the Valedictorian for the Class of 2020.  In addition
to Walden’s academic excellence he has been an active participant in Student Government
all four years, serving as its Treasurer this year. Walden has also shown what it means to be
a well-rounded student serving in various clubs as well as participating in school athletics.
Walden Yan will be attending Harvard University in the Fall of 2020.

2. Michael Hanratty (AHS Student) – in recognition for his stellar academic achievement and
thus named the Salutatorian for the Class of 2020.  In addition to Michael’s academic
excellence he has been an active member of the Avon High School Community, having
served as class president as well as participating in various other clubs and organizations.
Michael is also an accomplished golfer and was also the varsity golf team captain.  Michael
Hanratty will be attending Colgate University in the Fall of 2020.

Mission Statement 
Our mission is to inspire in each student a joy and passion for learning and a 

commitment to excellence, personal integrity, and social responsibility. 

3



Minutes Board of Education Regular Meeting – May 19, 2020 
P a g e | 2 

3. Rich Manning, Jeff Olson, Jason Plourde, Ben Puffer and Manny Rivera (AMS Staff) – in
recognition for being part of the custodial team at the Avon Middle School and appreciation
for everything they do, especially during this Covid19 pandemic. To quote an AMS student,
“Thank you for the time you take every day to clean up this school. Each time I walk into
this school, I am greeted by clean hallways and classrooms. Thanks to you, I do not have to
go to school in a dirty place… You deserve a big thank you for everything you do! I hope
you know that you are appreciated in all that you do for this school.”

B. Avon Board of Education Student Representative
1. Addisen Ganiats
This will be done at the June Board meeting.

IV. Approval of Minutes
A. Board of Education Regular Monthly Meeting, April 21, 2020
Jackie Blea moved to approve the April 21, 2020 minutes of the Board of Education Regular
Monthly Meeting.  Laura Young seconded the motion.
The motion carried by unanimous consent.

B. Board of Education Special Monthly Meeting, April 28, 2020
Jackie Blea moved to approve the April 28, 2020 minutes of the Special Monthly Meeting of April
28, 2020.  David Cavanaugh seconded the motion.
The motion carried by unanimous consent.

V. Communication from Public
There was no communication from the public.

VI. Items of Information and Proposals
A. Student Representative Report –Addisen Ganiats & Alvin Guo, AHS Student Representatives

No report was given.
B. Financial Report – Heather Michaud, Director of Fiscal Affairs

Ms. Michaud brought to the Board’s attention two items that had drastic changes in trend during
the month of April due to annualizing all hourly school employees as well as releasing all Spring
stipends and coaching which increased the Object Code 100 Line by approximately $163,000.
The other significant change was due to the closing of the transportation purchase orders though
the District is currently in legal negotiations and payment will still need to be made.  The releases
of encumbrances increased Object Code 500 by $216,000.00.  While comparing the past months
with previous years, the trend looks very different due to the circumstances but we are still in the
black.

VII. Committees & Liaison Reports
A. Committee Reports

1. Curriculum & Professional Practices – Jackie Blea, Chair
Ms. Blea informed the Board that the meeting has been rescheduled for Tuesday, June 2nd at
6:00 pm.

2. Finance – Jay Spivak, Chair
Mr. Spivak reported that at the last Finance Committee meeting, the financial report and
transfers were reviewed.  In the Special Ed report, the Escrow account will be returning to the
Town’s general fund just over $31,500.00.  The next scheduled meeting is Tuesday, June 9th

at 6:00 pm.

4



Minutes Board of Education Regular Meeting – May 19, 2020 
P a g e | 3 

3. Negotiations – Jason Indomenico, Chair
Mr. Indomenico stated that negotiations continue with food service workers and secretaries.
Since the shut down there is not much to report and hope to hold some online meetings.  Mr.
Indomenico also mentioned that a letter was sent to union presidents asking for cost reductions
due to the current circumstances.

4. Policy – Laura Young, Chair
Ms. Young reported the Policy Committee did not meet in May but will be meeting on
Monday, June 8th and will be discussing graduation requirements.

B. Liaison Report
1. Board Representative to Capital Region Education Council – Jackie Blea, Board Rep.

Ms. Blea stated that the next meeting is tomorrow and plans to attend.

VIII. Chair’s Report – Debra Chute, Board Chair
A. Board Chair Update

Ms. Chute commented on the recent car parade to honor the seniors with police and the volunteer
fire department helping in the celebration.   Ms. Chute acknowledged the other Board members
who were also in attendance as well as the work of Wanda Dawiczyk who organized the event.
It was so well received the students would like to make it a tradition.

IX. Superintendent’s Report – Dr. Bridget Heston Carnemolla
A. Hiring Report

The Superintendent informed the Board of the retirements of two high school teachers, Mr.
Donato and Mr. LaChance, which were expected.  A teaching assistant also resigned.

B. Enrollment Report
The report showed a decrease of five students from last month due to some moves out of state.
The biggest drop was in Pre-K with a number of parents opting out of the remote learning, perhaps
due to it being a tuition based program.

C. Updates
The Superintendent also acknowledged well attended senior car parade and was glad for the
opportunity to greet the students in their cars.  Dr. Carnemolla thanked Project Graduation for
making the event happen and the town’s emergency management including the police and fire
departments that led the parade.  Operations as a whole are still governed by the emergency
executive order, which is considered law, in conjunction with the State Dept. of Education and
the departments of public health.  The Superintendent reminded everyone that the decision to
reopen is not hers or that of the Board of Education. Even the graduation and summer plans are
dependent on the executive order and supersede what would be our normal procedures.

X. Consent Calendar
A. 19-20/59 Approval of Budget Transfers
B. 19-20/60 Approval of AHS Booster Club Friends of Crew donation of two crew shells valued

at $82,095 to the Avon Crew Team 
The Board Chair acknowledged the generous donation to the crew team.   

Jay Spivak moved to approve the Consent Calendar as presented, David Cavanaugh seconded. 
The motion carried 9-0-0. 

XI. Old Business
A. 18-19/70 Pledge to ACORN for the Turf Field Lighting Project

Dr. Carnemolla reminded the Board of the request that was first made by ACORN in May 2019.
ACORN continues to fundraise for the project with the goal of raising $400,000.  The Board had

5



Minutes Board of Education Regular Meeting – May 19, 2020 
P a g e | 4 

considered contributing $30,000.00 utilizing the funds from Facilities Use Enterprise Account 
(revenue received from rental use of the school facilities).  Due to current circumstances ACORN 
is not close to finishing their fundraising having raised $250,000.  They have also applied for a 
$50,000 grant which has not yet been received.  The Superintendent suggested that it be left for 
now without further action.  A Board member asked with the lack of revenue coming in due to 
the closure of the schools and the plans to renovate gym floors whether this would cause a burden 
on the funds in maintaining the facilities to which Ms. Michaud responded that there is 
approximately $100,000 in the account, however due to the closure, the District will not be 
generating any revenue.  Also, a portion of St. Ann’s rental fee is to be refunded utilizing these 
funds while some maintenance and repairs are also taken from this account.  Ms. Michaud 
confirmed that taking the funds out of the account for the pledge could potentially be an issue if 
there are unforeseen maintenance or repairs.  Ms. Michaud added that should the pledge be paid 
there would not be enough in the fund to pay for the next project after the gym floors.  Chair 
Chute agreed that the funding to ACORN be held off until next year.   

B. 19-20/58 School Closure Updates
Dr. Carnemolla asked Mr. Medic to speak about the results of the survey recently sent out to
families.  Mr. Medic spoke about the Remote Learning Survey which was created by district and
school level administrators and sent out via a communication from the Superintendent on April
30th.  Over 1,000 responses were received.  Overall the feedback was favorable.  97% responded
said their children had access to the appropriate technology; 93% indicated their children had
access to their teachers; 89% responded favorably about communication from building
administrators and teachers.  There were varying levels of favorability in terms of the academic
expectations of students, while some parents felt their students were not appropriately engaged,
some felt the resources for remote learning were missing the marks, and a sizeable number of
parents felt the rigor or balance of the work load was inconsistent.  Many of the comments were
positive, thanking staff for their efforts. Parents requested more live instruction and smaller group
settings or individual sessions.  There were also requests for more opportunities for students to
engage with their teachers and other students in non-academic settings.  These comments are
influencing the next steps administrators are planning and taking.  Also being reviewed are
grading and report cards during the closure.  The Superintendent acknowledged the efforts of Mr.
Medic in reviewing all the raw data and processing the information.  Dr. Carnemolla commented
that she felt that the District was ending the year close to how they had hoped.  Responding to a
Board member’s question, Dr. Carnemolla acknowledged that one of the goals before the closing
was to utilize a one to one technology approach which they are now doing. Use of technology has
also been utilized more as teachers are forced to utilize various forms of technology with remote
learning. A tremendous amount of professional development around technology has also been
offered.  Open Choice funds will be requested at the Finance Committee to purchase a filtering
system for Chromebooks to allow them to be used more extensively.   The Superintendent added
that the closure has not stopped what was already being discussed in the District such as looking
at ways to differentiate curriculum for all students and the process in identifying gifted and
talented students continue to be revised, which will be discussed further at the next C&PP
meeting.  Dr. Carnemolla also commented on the work that is continuing with the administrative
team including how to move the District forward, review the curriculum to prioritize the
standards, assess the standards to ensure we make progress in the remote environment and how
to bring the school buildings together to have further discussions.

Ms. Michaud informed the Board regarding the prepaid bus contracts in the District.  Legal 
counsel reviewed the contracts and drafted agreements to the District’s two main bus companies 

6



Minutes Board of Education Regular Meeting – May 19, 2020 
P a g e | 5 

and now awaiting the required data from the bus companies to calculate the payments.  Ms. 
Michaud also reported about a 25% decrease in electrical usage during the closure period and 
expects a substantial savings.   

XII. New Business
A. 19-20/61 Use of Facilities Funds - Gymnasium Floor Refinishing

There was no discussion or questions from the Board members.

Jay Spivak moved to approve an expenditure from the Use of Facilities Enterprise Account for the 
purposes of refinishing the PGS and AMS gymnasium floors totaling an estimated $40,333.00.  
Should funds become available in the General Fund to cover this expense either partially or in 
full, the General Fund will be utilized first then the Use of Facilities funding.  Jackie Blea 
seconded the motion. 
The motion carried 8-0-1 (yay – Blea, Cavanaugh, Chute, Indomenico, Oprica, Seminara, Spivak, 
Young; nay – none; abstain – Fleischman 

B. 19-20/62 Non-Lapsing Fund
The Superintendent reviewed for the Board the events that occurred regarding the non-lapsing
fund and how a discussion was previously had where she was instructed by the Board to write a
letter or interest to the Town Manager indicating interest in establishing a non-lapsing fund.
Dr. Carnemolla hoped to continue the discussion tonight to provide everyone a better
understanding of the fund and how it could be used.  Dr. Carnemolla also clarified that funds
will still be returned to the Town to help them replenish their funds which was used to offset the
District’s budget rather than putting the funds into the non-lapsing account that is being
discussed.  The Superintendent felt that establishment of a non-lapsing fund is for future use and
would be in the best interest of the Town and Board to have such a fund established by October.

Ms. Michaud explained how this type of account works under the law and provided information 
on the technical pieces of the fund and how it would look under the Avon Board of Education 
accounting structure.  Ms. Michaud referenced Board of Education Policy 3171.1 which was 
established several years ago regarding non-lapsing education funds.  CT General Statutes allows 
for up to 2% of a Board of Education’s adopted budget to be deposited annually into a non-
lapsing account.  There is no ceiling or threshold balance established by law but is established 
through resolution by towns and Boards of Education.  The fund would be established in the 
Board’s current accounting system and would be similar to the Facilities Use Fund and would 
be audited in a scrutinized manner.  Ms. Michaud suggested that this type of account would be 
suitable for deposit of the Open Choice funds since funds must be used for educational purposes.  
Currently the District must ask the Town for supplemental appropriations after the Open Choice 
funds are received and given to the Town.  Ms. Michaud knows of 27 districts in the state that 
utilizes non-lapsing accounts.  The Town currently has non-lapsing funds created for its own 
use.  Ms. Michaud also explained the difference with the Special Education Escrow Fund where 
funds are held by Shipman & Goodman and is held for a one year period after which unused 
funds must be returned to the Town.  Ms. Michaud also clarified that non-lapsing fund, enterprise 
fund and special revenue funds are one in the same.  Discussion continued regarding source of 
funds, oversight/approval and use of funds, negotiating with the Town the terms of the fund to 
come to resolution, the review and revision of the Board policy, diverting surplus funds, cost 
mitigation, budgeting strategies and flexibility, Open Choice revenue, surplus of tax dollars, 
Town’s revenue accounts, the budget process, Special Education costs, returning surplus funds 

7



Minutes Board of Education Regular Meeting – May 19, 2020 
P a g e | 6 

to the Town, not fixing what’s not broken, supplemental appropriations, being fiscally 
responsible, working together with the Town, the Special Ed Escrow account.   

The Superintendent stated that if the District were looking to establish a non-lapsing account just 
to put surplus funds in immediately and not giving money back to the Town to refund their 
unassigned fund it would not be a good decision especially in respects to their relationship with 
the Town.  Dr. Carnemolla stated that if there is the potential to help the Town replenish their 
“rainy day” fund, it should be done.  The conversation regarding the non-lapsing fund is about 
the future and the current circumstances has made that clear.  It is in the District’s best interest 
and it is in the Town’s best interest to have the fund to better manage the District’s budget.  Dr. 
Carnemolla made it clear that she did not want to see this issue be divisive among the Board 
members.  The options are to do nothing for now and wait a couple of months or do nothing at 
all and never have the conversation again.  

The Board agreed to pursue the non-lapsing fund and allow the Superintendent to continue the 
discussion with the Town but not pursue to establish the fund until the Board decides.  No motion 
was made as the motion was already made in a previous meeting however a roll was called to let 
the motion stand.  All were in agreement.   

C. 19-20/63 Graduation Ceremony
Dr. Carnemolla reviewed the plans for graduation which the District is fortunate to be having at the
Farmington Polo Grounds and is booked for June 17th.  Currently plans are for students to receive
their caps, gowns and diploma covers earlier and have photos taken.  A video will be created of all
students and will feature music hopefully from the band and choral groups.  Students will arrive to
the polo grounds with their families in their own cars and wait in their cars to receive their diploma.
The Superintendent and Mr. Renkawitz will meet with the high school class officers tomorrow to
work on more details and logistics.  The Board thanked the administration for making it special for
the seniors and acknowledged how fortunate we are to have the polo grounds.

XIII. Communication from Avon Board of Education Members
Mr. Oprica thanked the Superintendent for the update on the continuing progress on strategic 
initiatives as it keeps everyone accountable and progressive.  Education is an opportunity to have 
unlimited potential where we can strive to always do better and to do more.  Mr. Oprica asked to have 
the Strategic Plan Update reinstated on the agenda which the Chair agreed to do.   

XIV. Adjournment
Jackie Blea motioned to adjourn the meeting, Laura Young seconded.
The Board adjourned by unanimous consent at 10:00 pm.

Minutes prepared by Shirley Moy, Board Recording Secretary

Minutes respectfully submitted by Jeffrey S. Fleischman, Board Secretary

Jeffrey S. Fleischman, June 13, 2020

Board minutes are approved at the next regular monthly Board meeting, and any corrections to the
minutes, if needed, will be made at that time.

8



9



Minutes 
Curriculum & Professional Practices Committee 

Avon Board of Education 
34 Simsbury, Avon, Connecticut  06001 

Via Zoom  
Monday, June 8, 2020 - 6:00 p.m. 

Attendance 
Members Present:  Jackie Blea, Chair; Debra Chute; Jeffrey S. Fleischman; Bogdan Oprica 

Member(s) Absent:   none 

Administration Present: Dr. Bridget Heston Carnemolla, Superintendent; Dr. Donna Nestler-Rusack, 
Assistant Superintendent; Michael Renkawitz, AHS Principal; Jodi Kryzanski, Program Director and Kim 
Mearman, Director of Pupil Services 

Others Present:  Todd Dyer, Director of Counseling; Jenna Alysworth, AHS English Dept. Coordinator; 
Jaclyn Lawlor, AHS Math Dept. Coordinator; Shirley Moy, Board Clerk 

I. Call to Order
Committee Chair Blea called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm.

II. Approval of February 3, 2020 Minutes
Jeffrey Fleischman moved, Debra Chute seconded, to approve the February 3, 2020
Curriculum & Professional Practices minutes as presented.
The motion carried 4-0-0.

III. Proposed Graduation Requirements Beginning With Class of 2023
Dr. Donna Nestler-Rusack explained that in 2017 the CT General Assembly updated the Public
Act 1742, which was related to the graduation requirements.  The overall changes included an
increase in the number of required credits from 20 to 25.  Avon currently requires 22.5 credits
for graduation.  Increased flexibility with multi pathways for students and less restrictive
course requirements allowed districts to decide what they think is in the best interest for their
students and what they want and are able to provide.  There is also a new Mastery program
requirement.  Dr. Rusack compared the current graduation requirements with the new
requirements beginning with the Class of 2023.

Mr. Renkawitz, AHS Principal, further explained the Mastery requirement in wanting to give
students a good experience much like the Capstone.  The Mastery based learning can be a
college experience course that was not used to meet another requirement; a community service
project that emulates an internship program; an independent study designed by the student but
approved through a process; service learning project or a work experience.  Another area of
focus is the Health full credit requirement.

Mr. Dyer, Director of Counseling, added that the various pathways to meet the Mastery based
learning requirement would allow students to decide what works best for them.  Mr. Dyer

10



Curriculum & Professional Practices Minutes – June 2, 2020, Continued 
Page | 2     

agreed that the Health piece would be a challenge moving forward.  The majority of Avon 
High School students already meet the 25 credit requirement so the District is ahead of the 
curve.  Dr. Rusack added that there are currently many Health courses available as electives 
and can easily be part of the Health and Safety curriculum. 

The C&PP asked questions regarding not having a single course meet two separate 
requirements and the requirement of 25 credits.  Discussion was further had on the flexibility 
of the Mastery based learning program, how credits are categorized, how Avon already had a 
broader range in its curriculum structure, allowing students to earn credit for some of the 
community services they are already doing and clarification on English and Math course 
requirements.  Dr. Carnemolla added that the District continues to look at partnerships with 
other programs such as dual enrollment with Tunxis. Mr. Dyer said that the new requirements 
offer new opportunities for students and to expand how we help student meet their 
requirements.  Responding to questions from the committee, Dr. Rusack explained that the 
requirements for all subjects are clearly stated in the Course of Studies for student.  Dr. Rusack 
also confirmed the Holocaust was not yet a requirement.   

Jeff Fleischman moved, Deb Chute seconded, to move forward to the Policy Committee the 
Proposed Graduation Requirements Beginning with Class of 2023.    
The motion carried 4-0-0. 

IV. Primary Instructional Materials Recommendations
Dr. Rusack explained that CPDC met remotely.  The first two recommendations are in
response to what is outlined in the Blueprint for Excellence.  There was an action step to
identify a reading and writing approach for the District.  A committee was formed and came
to the unanimous agreement on the workshop model for K-12.  Jodi Kryzanski, Program
Director explained how the books were selected.  Dr. Rusack explained that there might have
been some disapproval from the committee due to the newness of the approach and
standardizing of the subjects with the use of the new material.  Ms. Kryzanski added that the
workshop models does allow flexibility and emphasizes the students where they are
individually as readers and writers as it gives a high level of choice.  Ms. Kryzanski clarified
for the Committee that approval is being sought for a set of instructional units; teacher
materials and subsequent related texts. Dr. Carnemolla stated that this will provide an
overarching vision of what we do as a school district and will bring a new methodology and
approach to teaching while being very student centered.  Ms. Kryzanski added that this is the
work of revising the ELA curriculum with differentiation in providing skill progressions in
academic goals.  The assessment practices in the District will honor this workshop model and
the ultimate goal is to have all students continue to grow and read more complex text at a high
level of comprehension independently.  This is an incremental change in looking at
assessments.  Finding the right content while still being challenging for high-level readers is a
challenge.  Dr. Rusack replied that building the classroom libraries to offer independent and
small group reading opportunities.  Jenna Alysworth reviewed the recommendations for the
ECE English courses at the high school.  The books allow students choices to read for the
various courses.  Dr. Carnemolla called to the Committee’s attention that there are now
notations should a book have any potential mature content.  Ms. Alysworth clarified that all
the recommendations are new to the district.  Dr. Rusack added that some of the books might
have been used as choice books but not as primary instructional material.  Ms. Alysworth
added that parents and students can opt out of reading any of the books even if the books are
whole class reads. Dr. Rusack stated that parents and students would soon have access to a list

11



Curriculum & Professional Practices Minutes – June 2, 2020, Continued 
Page | 3     

of all high school English books on the District website.  Ms. Alysworth listed the books, 
which will be required and included: The Essential Writings of Jonathan Swift, Forest Gump 
and Me Talk Pretty One Day; The Journalist and the Murderer; In Cold Blood; I’ll Be Gone in 
the Dark; Extremely Loud and Incredibly Close; Florida.  Ms. Alysworth has found that 
students were not singled out when they opted to read an alternative text and were still able to 
contribute to the class.  The Superintendent added that the degree of mature content was related 
to the class subject.   Though it may be more age appropriate for students in grade 12 than 
lower grades added a committee member.   A question was asked about the level of 
communication in advance to parents to help guide students make appropriate choices.  A 
suggestion was made to list the books with the course descriptions in the course of studies.  
Mr. Renkawitz added that it would not be feasible for guidance counselor to go through the 
lists of every book that will be read when a student signs up for high school courses, however, 
it may be possible for teachers to provide a list of possible books they would be using should 
a student be interested in researching a course.  Dr. Rusack added that perhaps on the website’s 
list of books it could include the courses the book may be used with a disclaimer that the book 
may not be used.  It was already discussed that teachers send home a list or syllabus at the 
beginning of the semester of books that would potentially be used.  Dr. Carnemolla stated that 
she did not feel the list of books belonged on the course of studies but perhaps directions to 
the list of books on the website and would still get the information to the parents.  Dr. Rusack 
also explained that those voting on books are members of the Curriculum Professional 
Development Council (CPDC) which has members from all grade levels, teachers from all 
departments, a couple of administrators, and a couple of Board members.   Jaclyn Lawlor 
presented the proposals for the Business courses.  Two of the textbooks were for current 
Business courses while one was for a new course.  The textbooks are through Tunxis 
Community College and is part of grant where the textbooks are provided to Avon at no cost.  
Dr. Rusack explained that the Science curriculum was revised a few years back based on the 
Next Generation Science Standards using the Life Science Standards for 7th grade Science.  
The textbooks being proposed is to align with this standard and new curriculum.  Dr. Rusack 
also spoke of the last proposal, which will be used as a supplemental resource for the Civil 
Rights Movement elective course. 

Primary Instructional Materials Recommendations include: 
● Units of study for Teaching Reading - ELA grades K-5
● Units of study in Opinion, Information, and Narrative Writing - ELA grades K-6
● A Visit From the Goon Squad - ELA grade 12
● Extremely Loud and Incredibly Close – ELA grade 12
● Florida – ELA grade 12
● Let the Great World Spin – ELA grade 12
● Nothing to See Here – ELA grade 12
● Saturday – ELA grade 12
● Cat’s Cradle – ELA grade 12
● Election – ELA grade 12
● Forest Gump – ELA grade 12
● Me Talk Pretty One Day – ELA grade 12
● Naked – ELA grade 12
● The Essential Writing of Jonathan Swift – ELA grade 12
● Vacationland – ELA grade 12
● Cover Her Face – ELA grade 12
● Gone Girl – ELA grade 12

12



Curriculum & Professional Practices Minutes – June 2, 2020, Continued 
Page | 4     

● I’ll Be Gone in the Dark – ELA grade 12
● In Cold Blood – ELA grade 12
● The Girl on the Train – ELA grade 12
● The Journalist and the Murderer – ELA grade 12
● The Talented Mr. Ripley – ELA grade 12
● The Namesake – ELA grade 12
● College Accounting – A Practical Approach – Mathematics grade 9-12
● Financial Accounting – Mathematics grades 9-12
● Introduction to Business – Mathematics grade 9-12
● Life Science – Science grade 7
● Voices of Freedom: An Oral History of the Civil Rights Movement From 1950s

Through the 1980s – Social Studies grades 10-12

Jackie Blea moved, Debra Chute seconded, to move the Primary Instructional Materials 
Recommendations to the full Board for approval and purchase. 
The motion carried 4-0-0. 

; 
V. Gifted Identification Process Update

Dr. Carnemolla prefaced that this was a review and update of what had already been presented
to the full Board on this process.  The Superintendent also acknowledged the work of Dr.
Mearman, Dr. Rusack, Ms. Kryzanski and the principals for work in researching current
practice.  Dr. Mearman gave an overview the identification process for talented and gifted,
which is initiated for all students in grade 3.

● Step 1 – the screening will be administered in the Spring of grade 3 using the Otis-
Lennon School Ability Test (OLSAT).

● Step 2 – for students who scored at or above the “X” percentile on the OLSAT, the
Smarter Balanced Assessment will be reviewed and the following included in a
discussion with certified professionals

o Smarter Balanced Assessment
o Degrees of Reading Power
o District and Curriculum Summative Assessments
o District Report Cards
o Teacher Questionnaire
o Parent/Guardian Checklist

● Step 3 – for students who scored at or above the 98th percentile on the OLSAT and met
the criteria in Step 2, a Planning and Placement Team (PPT) meeting will review the
data and discuss eligibility and identification as Gifted

o Per CT Regulations “For purposes of the evaluation identification, or
determination of the specific educational needs of a child who may be gifted,
the PPT means a group of certified or licensed professionals who represent each
of the teaching administrative, and pupil personnel staffs, and who participate
equally in the decision making process.

o The student’s parent/guardian is required at the PPT, however, an offer of
participation in the PPT process will be made available to parents/guardians.
They will also be provided a copy of the PPT notifications and determinations.

While the process takes place in third grade, a teacher or parent can ask that any student, 
including those new to the district be considered for giftedness using the same assessment and 
identification process.  Students with special needs who are identified as Gifted would be 

13



Curriculum & Professional Practices Minutes – June 2, 2020, Continued 
Page | 5     

entitled to an IEP related to their specific disability but not required to provide services related 
to gifted and will be supported in the same manner as all other students determined as gifted. 

Dr. Mearman went on to explain the notification and appeal process.  Dr. Rusack explained 
that the old criteria was used for the current fourth grade students and parents were notified 
that their children met the initial criteria to be considered and will be administered the OLSAT 
in the Fall when they are fifth graders at TBS.  Current third graders would have been 
administered the OLSAT this Spring but will not be administered the test in the Fall and next 
year’s third graders will be administered the test in the Spring of next year.  To catch up, three 
grades will have to be administered the test next school year.   

Dr. Mearman responded to a Committee question stating that multiple measures were needed 
to make the determination of eligibility criteria with heavy emphasis on the OLSAT.  Dr. 
Mearman explained that in the prior process the OLSAT was given only to students meeting 
eligibility criteria and now changed so of the OLSAT is the initial assessment given.  
Discussion continued on the flexibility of looking at the various measures for looking at the 
whole child, which also widens the net and gives more opportunity for identifying gifted 
students.  The process of the PPT and what is done to nurture gifted students was also 
discussed.  Dr. Rusack and Ms. Kryzanski reviewed the various enrichment programs and 
enrichment clusters available to all students.  Dr. Carnemolla added that MakerSpaces are also 
targeted instruction and provides student choice.  In response to a Committee question, Dr. 
Rusack stated that while Avon does not provide a Gifted program per se, focusing on 
Enrichment for All, differentiating within the classroom and providing different opportunities 
during targeted instructional blocks to allow students to explore and follow their 
passions/interests.  Teachers are notified if a student is identified as Gifted with a notation on 
the student’s screen on PowerSchool.  Dr. Carnemolla added that the identification also opens 
the door to conversations with parents about the opportunities for their children.  Dr. Rusack 
replied to a Committee member’s question and stated that the Enrichment Coach is to work 
with teachers to model, to provide PD and train teachers.  Dr. Carnemolla added that reading 
specialists can also be a resource for teachers in finding appropriate reading material and 
follow-up discussions for Gifted students.  There are currently 96 identified Gifted students in 
grades 5 to 12.  A Committee member suggested having a designated person/coach to be able 
to assist Gifted students and their parents.  Dr. Carnemolla agreed with the suggestion and 
stated it is one of the action steps. Dr. Rusack replied that the Enrichment Coach works 
primarily with grades K to six as academic leveling begins in the seventh grade.  Accelerating 
curriculum was also suggested by a Committee member to which Dr. Rusack replied a balance 
was needed so that there is not a “rush to nowhere.”  The Superintendent confirmed that there 
are currently students who are accelerating where they take higher grade level subjects.  There 
are also the opportunities at the high school for college level courses and dual enrollment even 
allowing students to graduate early.  Dr. Mearman reminded everyone that it was important to 
look at the whole child including his or her social needs.  The Superintendent added that there 
are three considerations - where you can enrich, where you should accelerate and the 
social/emotional needs of a child.  There must be a balance of all three particularly with Gifted 
and Talented.  Chair Blea thanked everyone for the input in the conversation.   

VI. Open Choice Professional Development Update
Dr. Rusack reviewed how the District utilizes the Open Choice Professional Development
resources.  Two free days are provided for PD.  Each year Open Choice provides a list of the

14



Curriculum & Professional Practices Minutes – June 2, 2020, Continued 
Page | 6     

trainings related to cultural proficiency.  Storytelling as an Empathy Building Tool was 
presented at PGS, RBS & TBS; Implicit Bias was done at PGS & AMS.  Culturally Responsive 
Families – How to Engage Families; Culturally Responsive Teaching; Restorative Practices; 
Looking at Culturally Relevant Literacy; Racial Equalities and Social Justice and Cultural 
Responsiveness in Schools; Looking at the Culturally Responsive Practices were among the 
list of professional developments Dr. Rusack mentioned were offered to staff.  At least one PD 
day is dedicated to this area.  Discussion was had regarding the loss of the Open Choice Liaison 
and whether there is still a contact person for the students and families to ensure good 
communication.  Dr. Rusack stated that the first contact is the teachers and brings the families 
in for the orientations so there is an initial contact.  Buildings will also have family events with 
the district providing bus transportations to engage the families.  Social workers and school 
psychologists will also engage with the students.  CREC also has their version of a liaison for 
extra support and other resources, which the District and Open Choice families can access if 
needed.  The Committee expressed appreciation for the social/emotional support provided to 
Open Choice students and families.  Dr. Rusack mentioned that there have been only a small 
number of Open Choice students that have withdrawn from the program.  While there have 
also been instances of Open Choice families moving to Avon to be part of the community.  
Chair Blea also mentioned the scholarships CREC offers and that Avon had a recipient of one 
of the scholarships.  Ms. Blea also suggested perhaps resuming holding meetings in Hartford 
to allow Hartford parents the opportunity in attending. 

VII. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned by unanimous consent at 8:29 pm.

Minutes prepared by Shirley Moy, Board Recording Secretary 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Jackie Blea, Curriculum & Professional Practices Chair 
Jackie Blea, June 13, 2019 
Minutes respectfully received by Jeffrey S. Fleischman, Board Secretary 
Jeffrey S. Fleischman, June 13, 2019 

15



MINUTES 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AVON BOARD OF EDUCATION   
34 Simsbury, Avon, Connecticut  06001 

Via Zoom 
Tuesday, June 9, 2020 – 6:00 p.m. 

Attendance 
Members Present:  Jay Spivak, Chair; David Cavanaugh; Bogdan Oprica; Laura Young 

Member(s) Absent: none 

Administration Present:  Dr. Bridget H. Carnemolla, Superintendent; Heather Michaud, Director of 
Fiscal Affairs 

Others Present:  Debra Chute, Board Chair; Shirley Moy, Board Recording Secretary 

I. Call to order
The meeting was called to order by Jay Spivak, Finance Committee Chair, at 6:00 pm

II. Approval of May 12, 2020 Minutes
David Cavanaugh moved to approve the minutes of the May 12, 2020 Finance Committee
meeting, Laura Young seconded.
The motion passed 4-0-0.

III. Financial Report May 31, 2020
Ms. Michaud stated that there was expected significant movement in the month of May due to
the pre-buying, which is reflected in the budget transfers.  Substantial jumps in the
unencumbered balance reductions were seen in Object Code 100 – salaries due to the entering
of all co-curricular and end of year stipends following MOUs based on the time the jobs
commenced which totaled approximately $150,000.00.  There were two journal entries for
employer contributions, one for active and one for retirees for the months of April and May in
Object Code 200 for over $1,165,000.00, and administration fees which the Town provides for
insurance were also entered for April and May for approximately $163,000. There was an
increase in Object Code 300 due to the close out of several purchase orders while Object Codes
400, 500 and 500 decreased due to the pre-buying which again is reflected in the budget
transfers.  The overall adjustment in unencumbered balance was substantial between the two
months with an overall adjustment short of $2,000,000 or a 3.3% reduction from the month
prior.  There is a 1.36% or an $821,000 lag from last year.

Facilities Use Fund had no expenditures but revenues were reduced.  Ms. Michaud informed
the Committee that St. Ann’s was prorated based on usage and returned approximately
$2,100.00 due to the closure.

16



Minutes Board of Education Finance Committee Meeting – June 9, 2020, Continued 
P a g e  | 2     

Special Ed Analysis showed no changes since April.  $31,500.00 will be given back at the end 
of the year to the escrow account due to the one to one para situation with an outplacement. 

The Month to Month Comparison outlines the year to year differences.  Ms. Michaud reported 
that it was not a typical trend this year as a large amount of transactions were pushed through 
in the month of May.   

IV. Transfers
 2020-79 - $4,334.27 for pre-buying of instructional supplies at TBS
 2020-80 - $700.00 for a replacement dryer for Special Education classroom at AHS
 2020-81 - $4,500.00 for Fuzzy Feet to reduce noise of desks and chairs at AHS
 2020-82 - $2,899.00 for Coronavirus cleaning supplies at PGS
 2020-83 - $3,671.00 for Coronavirus cleaning supplies at RBS
 2020-84 - $3,018.00 for Coronavirus cleaning supplies at TBS
 2020-85 - $3,467.00 for Coronavirus cleaning supplies at Central Office
 2020-86 - $4,380.00 for unanticipated repairs at PGS, RBS, TBS & AMS
 2020-88 - $4,000.00 for additional Fuzzy Feet to reduce noise of desks and chairs at AHS
 2020-89 - $2,205.00 for pre-buying of LA and Math instructional supplies at RBS
 2020-90 - $2,368.00 for pre-buying of Social Studies instructional supplies at RBS
 2020-91 - $4,880.36 for pre-buying of instructional materials at TBS
 2020-92 - $2,313.00 for table with stools for gallery at AHS
 2020-93 - $285.04 for One School One Book for students at PGS
 2020-94 - $4,885.69 for pre-buying of instructional materials at PGS
 2020-95 - $4,604.00 for World Lang. and Technology instructional material at AMS
 2020-96 - $2,892.00 for Science and MARC supplies at AMS
 2020-97 - $1,933.00 for wellness instructional supplies and gym locks at AMS
 2020-98 - $2,805.00 for LA textbooks and SS and Interscholastic supplies at AMS
 2020-99 - $1,979.00 for music equipment at AMS
 2020-100 - $4,500.00 for office supplies at the Central Office
 2020-101 - $299.00 for pre-buying of instructional supplies at RBS
 2020-102 - $362.78 for World Language program at PGS
 2020-103 - $4,763.05 for pre-buying of instructional supplies at TBS
 2020-104 - $4,388.16 for pre-buying of instructional supplies at PGS
 2020-105 - $3,492.85 for pre-buying of instructional supplies at TBS
 2020-106 - $2,764.23 for pre-buying of instructional supplies at TBS
 2020-107 - $2,690.45 for pre-buying of instructional supplies at TBS
 2020-108 - $2,360.33 for pre-buying of instructional supplies at TBS
 2020-109 - $3,888.96 for Math and SS instructional supplies at PGS
 2020-111 - $260,146.19 for salary and benefits lines district-wide
 2020-112 - $257,526.02 for legal fees and Nutrition Services overhead
 2020-113 - $547,298.40 for ChromeBooks, online subscriptions including MERAKI, new

ELA material, furniture, and a universal assessment platform
 2020-114 - $105,941.99 for PPE, bottle filling stations, temperature scanners district-wide
 2020-115 - $362,237.54 for a new plow truck, skylight, PA, lighting and security alarm

repairs in the district

17



Minutes Board of Education Finance Committee Meeting – June 9, 2020, Continued 
P a g e  | 3     

Ms Michaud reviewed the budget transfers and noted that many of the transfers were due to 
the pre-buying.  Transfer 2020-111 was related to salary and benefit, such as long term subs 
due to FMLA and regular leaves, time and half overtime related to the facilities department 
but may be reimbursed by FEMA for hazardous duty pay, and benefits items such as 
administrative fees which is calculated by the Town, and employer 403B contributions, 
employee assistance programs and interpreters that were needed.  Ms. Michaud also 
explained the medical claims fund with the Town.  Transfer 2020-112 relates to the 
Governor’s executive order to continue to pay all employees, which includes Nutritional 
Services staff.  While the Nutritional Services is a self-sustaining program, with the closure 
there has been no revenue generated to offset the overhead costs.  This budget transfer also 
covers the increase in legal fees due to Special Education matters.  Transfer 2020-113 is for 
instructional related materials, supplies and furniture while preparing for unknown future 
scenarios when schools are reopened.  Ms. Michaud and Dr. Carnemolla explained that each 
building makes the requests for specific furniture but given the CDC requirements, 
individual student desks/seating may need to be purchased.  Transfer 2020-114 has to do 
with PPE and what the District may need to reopen such as bottle filling stations to replace 
water fountains.  Transfer 2020-115 is for the funding of repairs that did not make the 
Capital list such as skylight repairs, a new plow truck, TBS’ PA system, lighting and 
security alarms.  Ms. Michaud further explained that funds were utilized from the 
transportation, utility and copier savings. 

Jay Spivak moved, Laura Young seconded, to approve and move to the full Board budget 
transfers as presented. 
Motion passed 4-0-0 

V. New Business
a. Capital Projects
b. Summer Facility Projects

Ms. Michaud spoke about both the Capital and Summer Facility projects and explained
that there not many summer projects planned.  Projects include tiling at AHS, AMS and
PGS; security foyer at AMS; LED lighting; gym flooring refinishing and roof replacement
at RBS.  These projects are expected to be completed before school reopens in the fall.
Ms. Michaud clarified the gym flooring will utilize general fund first and then use of
facilities fund.

c. Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Donations Summary
The Donations Summary is primarily a list for recognition to the Board showing substantial
support from the community, but no action is needed.  Chair Spivak acknowledged all the
generous donations and the impact it makes on the schools.

d. FY 2019/2020 Year End Encumbrance List
Dr. Carnemolla explained that the Year End Encumbrance list is exclusive of the $500,000
that is planned to be returned to the Town at the end of the year and all items listed are equal
in priority and essential.  Included in the list is funding of the Special Education Escrow
account for five students.  Ms Michaud explained the escrow account must be spent
specifically on the five students with the fifth student pending having an estimated amount
of $60,000 needed for tuition.  Dr. Carnemolla went on to explain the PPE are anticipated
needs for both students and staff including masks,  plexiglass dividers for offices and some
student areas, water filling stations, temperature scanners and whatever else that may be
determined as necessary.  Additional Chromebooks and web filtering are also needed to
continue remote learning if needed.  Ms. Michaud added that the amounts for the
encumbrances are exact and the Board will see additional requests should additional
materials be needed.  Dr. Carnemolla reminded the Committee that any reimbursements

18



Minutes Board of Education Finance Committee Meeting – June 9, 2020, Continued 
P a g e  | 4     

from FEMA will be given to the Town.  The Superintendent reviewed with the Committee 
the remaining items on the encumbrance list including online subscriptions to support 
learning, universal assessment platform, ELA materials, textbooks, ELA material, 
Chromebook charging stations, truck replacement, skylight repair at TBS & PGS, PA 
system at TBS, lighting at AMS, MERAKI 5 yr license renewal (which provides an 
approximate savings of $60,000 over single year renewals) to support wireless system and 
infrastructure, security alarms at RBS and AMS, HVAC system at AMS and furniture at the 
schools.  Ms. Michaud stated that auditors allow adjustments to purchase orders up to close 
of business on June 30th.   Ms. Michaud also reviewed the necessity of the Special Ed Escrow 
account and how it is funded.  She also reminded the Committee of the $83,000 grant from 
the Cares Act which will be used to offset the technology needs.  Dr. Carnemolla 
commented that the total of the year end encumbrances is $1,200,783.11 and is necessary 
for the Special Ed Escrow account, operations, instruction for in person or remote and for 
safety needs related to Covid.  Committee Chair Jay Spivak asked the Committee to consider 
allowing the administration flexibility to increase the amount due to the uncertainty of the 
costs associated with the fifth student in the Special Ed Escrow account and the addition of 
the PGS & AMS refinishing of floors.   

Jay Spivak moved to approve the listing of year end encumbrances totaling $1,200,783.11 
as well as direct administration to make necessary adjustments to year-end encumbrance 
listings, including purchases as deemed necessary for the operation of the District.  Laura 
Young seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 4-0-0. 

VI. Old Business
a. School Closure Update

Ms. Michaud shared that the Eversource savings is approximately $80,000, the three
transportation settlements saved approximately $225,000, each with a different per diem
settlement and about $22,000 in copier savings.  As of yet, there are no unexpected costs
for graduation.

VII. Comments from the Public
Committee member Bogdan Oprica thanked the administrators for navigating through
uncharted and unexpected times.

VIII. Adjournment
Jay Spivak moved, David Cavanaugh seconded, to adjourn at 7:26 pm.
The motion passed 4-0-0.

Minutes prepared by Shirley Moy, Recording Secretary
Minutes respectfully submitted by Jay Spivak, Finance Committee Chair
Jay Spivak, June 13, 2020

Minutes respectfully received by Jeffrey S. Fleischman, Board Secretary
Jeffrey S. Fleischman, June 13, 2020

Minutes are approved at the next Finance Committee meeting, and any corrections to the minutes,

if needed, will be made at that time.

19



Minutes 
Policy Committee 

Avon Board of Education 
34 Simsbury, Avon, Connecticut  06001 

Via Zoom  
Monday, June 8, 2020 - 6:00 p.m. 

Attendance 
Members Present:  Laura Young, Chair; David Cavanaugh; Jason Indomenico; Lisa Seminara 

Member(s) Absent:  None 

Administration Present:   Dr. Bridget Heston Carnemolla, Superintendent of Schools; Donna Nestler-
Rusack, Assistant Superintendent; Roberto Medic, Director of Human Resources 

Others Present:  Deb Chute, Board Chair; Shirley Moy, Recording Secretary 

I. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order by Laura Young, Policy Committee Chair, at 6:02 pm.

II. Approval of March 10, 2020 Minutes
Jason Indomenico moved, Lisa Seminara seconded, to approve the minutes of the March 10,
2020 Policy Committee meeting.
The motion passed 4-0-0.

III. Communication from Public
Policy Committee Chair, Laura Young, stated that in light of recent national events, it is
imperative that communities and school districts work together to address Racism and in
particular, inequality in education, which must never be tolerated.

With this in mind, generally speaking, as outlined by the Connecticut Association of Boards of
Education, the primary function of a Board of Education Policy Committee is to fulfill a
legislative role, by adopting policies that help guide the operations of a school system.

In doing so, Policy Committees meet throughout the year to review, update, remove and or add
new policy, mostly in response to legislative action and/or to support newly identified board
priorities, as part of an ongoing process.  Suggestions for policy evaluation may also originate
from board members, administration, and/or from the community.

The Policy Committee has and will continue to review and enact policies that reflect thoughtful
consideration and best practices through an equity lens, in the Avon Public Schools. Dr.
Carnemolla, Dr. Rusack and Mr. Medic can speak in greater detail, to the ways in which this
happens.

Directions were also given should anyone attending the meeting wish to submit a comment to
the Policy Committee.

20



Minutes Board of Education Policy Committee Meeting – June 8, 2020, Continued 
Page 2    

IV. Old Business – Items for Continued Review and Discussion
a. Policy 6146 Graduation Requirements

Assistant Superintendent, Donna Nestler-Rusack  reviewed the changes made to Policy
6146 regarding the graduation requirements stating that changes made included deleting the
guidelines that are no longer relevant and to reflect the new requirements.  Dr. Rusack also
explained the revised course credits of 25 needed to graduate.  Mr. Renkawitz, AHS
Principal explained to the members of the Policy Committee how the increased credits
compared to current policy and highlighted the new requirements of 1.0 for Health and
Safety Education and 0.5 credit for Mastery Based Learning.  There was also an additional
change of 0.5 credit in Humanities and an additional 1.5 in STEM requirements.  Mr.
Renkawitz added that possible Mastery Based Learning options include a college
experience course level that is not used for another graduation requirement, internship, work
experience, service learning or independent study.  Avon’s Director of Guidance, Todd
Dyer stated that Avon is well poised to meet the new Connecticut State graduation
requirements and was excited about the flexibility offered to students that is now included.
Mr. Dyer indicated that the manner in which the high school can interpret the Mastery
Based Learning credit would provide students a range of options that will fit their personal
interests and needs.

David Cavanaugh moved to bring Policy 6146 Graduation Requirements as revised to the full 
Board as a first read.  Lisa Seminar seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 4-0-0. 

b. Equity in Policies
Dr. Carnemolla stated that given the national conversations happening about equity, race,
social justice reform, the Board wanted to have the opportunity to have this discussion in the
confines of the Policy Committee meeting because the Policies are the backbone of the school
district and setting policies is the main function of the Board of Education.  Dr. Carnemolla
went on to review the policies that have been revised through an equity lens.  As the work in
revising the District’s Strategic Plan and Blueprint for Excellence has centered around equity
and how the District provides for all students’ needs from a social/emotional and educational
standpoint, while not publicized, much of the work has been done.  The Superintendent
realized that although the work was being done concerning equity, non-discrimination and
reviewing our data for equitable treatment of our students and opportunities there may not
have been as much conversation as there could have been which she hoped to have tonight.

The Superintendent reviewed the Strategic Plan known as the Blueprint for Excellence which 
the administration and staff work towards implementing in relation to goals and beliefs and 
includes providing safe climate from a physical, social/emotional and educational standpoint.  
Meeting the individual and collective needs of students is also within the plan and woven in 
the District’s policies.  Policy 0300 refers to the goals and mission of the District and sets the 
tone for the rest of the policies.  The policy states that all planning will be done with those 
goals in mind and is in line with the Strategic Plan.  Policy 6121 was also recently revised 
and speaks of nondiscrimination in the educational program due to changes in law and to  
keep in line with the Civil Rights Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act.  This affirms 
our policies of  equal opportunity of all educational and co-curricular programs for all and 
prohibits discrimination of race, religion, color, national origins, sex, sexual orientation, 
marital status, age, disability, genetic information, veteran status or gender identity or 
expression.   The policy was updated on November 2019 for both the student and staff 

21



Minutes Board of Education Policy Committee Meeting – June 8, 2020, Continued 
Page 3    

policies.  This closely related to the policy on instructional materials.  The Superintendent 
reviewed the revision of the sexual harassment policy for students that protects gender 
identity and expression and the bullying prevention policy.  Policies that had any reference to 
harassment, discrimination, or bullying were also reviewed by the Policy Committee.   

Mr. Medic, Director of Human Resources spoke of the recruitment and retention relating to 
integrating of the District staff.  Mr. Medic reviewed the work done on personnel policies 
related to sexual harassment and nondiscrimination.  The major changes were to ensure that 
the protected classifications as outlined by the federal and state governments are appropriately 
listed in the policies and the procedures related to handling claims of discrimination and 
harassment are in line with updated legislation.  Mr. Medic also explained Policy 2111 which 
is an equal opportunity policy that provides guidance to ensure that the District’s workforce 
is a diverse population and we do not discriminate on the basis of any of the protected 
classifications.  Policy 4111.1 and 4111.3 speak on equal opportunity and minority 
recruitment and ensure all candidates have access to the same material as well as ensuring we 
provide the same consideration to candidates of all protected classifications.  Mr. Medic stated 
that the goals of the Strategic Plan in diversifying our workforce is important for our students 
to help provide opportunities for students to interact with individuals in all walks of life.  
Partnering with Teach Connecticut, which is a network that broadcasts open position through 
various mediums to multi-states and also recruits at nationally black colleges/universities, and 
Troops to Teachers Program has helped extend the District’s reach with hiring.  Mr. Medic 
has also attended minority recruitment meetings at CREC and works with other districts to 
ensure greater diversity in our workforce and school districts.  There is also a homegrown 
effort to help non-certified staff obtain their certification.  Additional work needs to be done 
on other policies to ensure consistency in language in regards to protected classifications.   

Dr. Carnemolla clarified the difference between policies and regulations/procedures/practices 
to support the policies.  The work of the Policy Committee and Board of Education is to 
continually revise policies to ensure that they are inclusive. 

Dr. Rusack shared how the policies and focus areas of the Blueprint for Excellence are 
imbedded in the everyday work.  This ensure to help meet the academic and social/emotional 
needs of all the students.  One area to help achieve this is by providing staff with ongoing 
professional development in the areas of equity and cultural proficiency.  Staff from CREC 
and SERC as well as District staff have provided training.  Some examples of training and 
teaching have included story telling as an empathy building tool, implicit bias, work on 
culturally responsible engagement, culturally responsive teaching and practices, restorative 
practices, culturally relevant literature, identifying culturally relevant literature, topics of race 
and culture and how to have the conversations about them, and ways to productively address 
hurtful bias in the elementary grades.  Building Equity in Policies and Practices to Empower 
All Learners was read by staff at the middle school and discussed throughout the year.  
Creating inclusive, accepting environments has been a focus districtwide.  Included in the 
Blueprint for Excellence is work around the social/emotional learning with the EXCEL 
model.  The 2nd STEP program is being implemented at PGS and RBS and will roll up to TBS 
next year.  TBS has a CARES program for students who demonstrate caring, acceptance, 
respect, empathy and safety.  Dr. Rusack spoke of the various activities the schools held to 
share different cultures.  Welcoming walkthroughs were also held at the schools to assess 
how welcoming the schools are and how to improve.  Students also participated in Tutoring 

22



Minutes Board of Education Policy Committee Meeting – June 8, 2020, Continued 
Page 4    

in the City and heard from various speakers.  Open Choice also held various events for 
students, families and staff.   

The Superintendent stated tonight offered the opportunity for conversation and focus on how 
the District is living out its policies and Strategic Plan.  Dr. Carnemolla took a moment to 
acknowledge her appreciation of the Board of Education for diversifying and hiring her as 
the first woman superintendent in Avon.  And though the District has administrators and staff 
of various classifications, the Superintendent emphasized that the work is not yet done and 
still needs to integrate our staff as much as possible because there is value in our students 
being able to learn from and interact with all kinds of individuals and whom they may identify 
with.  Dr. Carnemolla also shared the work she is doing with the Connecticut Center for 
School Change and as a member of the Superintendent’s Network in Connecticut which is 
based on a person’s commitment to working in the best interest of students in teaching, 
learning and equity.  Dr. Carnemolla shared her commitment to this work due to her belief 
that all the work must not only come from the bottom up but the top down to meet the needs 
of everyone they serve. 

V. Communication from Public

Olivia Piper, AHS alumni, 129 Stagecoach Rd Avon, CT wrote as a prior graduate of the school 
system and a current Avon resident and an educator, I want to know what the school system is 
doing specifically to make sure that all of its students, but particularly its students of color have 
equitable and easy access to mental health services within their school? Are you taking steps to 
hire more mental healthcare professionals like social workers and school counselors to meet this 
need? Also, I would like to know what specific anti-racism content is being implemented into the 
curriculum for students and into professional development for staff? I suggest you look into the 
organization ‘Teaching Tolerance’ in order to institute anti-racism programming and lesson plans 
into the curriculum - they have lesson plans available for teachers to teach directly to students 
and they offer professional development courses for educators and staff. 

Dr. Carnemolla explained that in normal times the District has been proactive in informing the 
various support staff and their roles in each building so students know who to access.  Support 
information is also available online on the District resources website.  While there are students 
of color who live in Avon and students of color who come from Hartford, the Superintendent 
stressed that what is done in Avon is done for all students.  Additional pieces of outreach are also 
done for the Open Choice students to ensure there is more of a connection to the families and 
community. 

Nancy D'Incecco, 101 Pine Hill Road Avon CT 06001 commented that true change and equity in 
systemic racism will not come about until we have a more diverse teaching/administrative/BOE 
staff. Ms. D’Incecco suggested working with RE CENTER, an organization that she believes will 
bring about  change and provide training to the staff and administrators.  Ms. D’Incecco was also 
expressed concern of possible hostile environments students may encounter when accused of 
wrongdoing in front of peers or by being tormented to the point of wanting to kill themselves. 
Ms. D’Incecco asked for more access to support or mental health such as NAMI to support all 
people. Specifically, they have a program that is geared towards teaching elementary school aged 
children. Diversity and mental health go hand in hand. 

23



Minutes Board of Education Policy Committee Meeting – June 8, 2020, Continued 
Page 5    

Ellen Mcneill, AHS alumni, 2013 graduate, 30 Charing Cross Avon CT emailed that these are 
not new policies, how will you be implementing them from paper to real life to ensure that black 
& POC communities are supported and protected? Great that we are diversifying gender in the 
school system, but B H began talking about herself, her journey and relating herself to the Black 
struggle. We are all learning and growing and holding each other accountable so I want to point 
out that being an ally means removing yourself from the narrative not shifting it to yourself to 
talk about your own path. It is tough and uncomfortable to hear, but systemic racism is a vast and 
serious issue in Avon in so many ways that deserves full and long-term attention! 

Committee Chair Laura Young acknowledged the comments received and stated that due to the 
time comments would not be read but added to the minutes.  Dr. Carnemolla also added that if 
there were questions or comments that needed to be addressed further to please feel free to contact 
her. 

VI. Future Items for Review
a. Staff/Student Relationships
b. School Volunteers & Parent Involvement

VII. Adjournment
David Cavanaugh moved, Jason Indomenico seconded, to adjourn the meeting.
The meeting adjourned by unanimous consent at 6:58 pm.

Minutes prepared by Shirley Moy, Recording Secretary

Minutes respectfully submitted by Laura Young, Policy Committee Chair
Laura Young, June 13, 2020

Minutes respectfully received by Jeffrey S. Fleischman, Board Secretary
Jeffrey S. Fleischman, June 13, 2020

Minutes are approved at the next Policy meeting, and any corrections to the minutes, if needed, will 
be made at that time. 

24



OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
Dr. B. Heston Carnemolla  ●   Superintendent  

34 SIMSBURY ROAD ● AVON  ● CONNECTICUT ● 06001 
TEL (860) 404-4700   ●  FAX (860) 404-4702 

bhcarnemolla@avon.k12.ct.us 

      June 2020

New Hires-Certified Staff 
6/1/2020 Morgigno, Ariel AMS English Language Arts 
6/1/2020 Stone,  Matthew AHS English Language Arts 
6/1/2020 Root, Paige AHS World Lang 

Retirements 
6/30/2020 Perrault,  Ann  PGS Teacher Wellness 
6/30/2020 Forster , Margaret AMS Para-Educator 
6/30/2020 Roberts, Mary  PGS Para-Educator 

25



ENROLLMENT REPORT
June 12, 2020

School Grade

June

2019 # Sect

Average 

Class Size

Aug

2019

Sept

2019

Oct

2019

Nov

2019

Dec

2019

Jan

2020

Feb

2020

Mar

2020

Apr

2020

May

2020

June

2020 # Sect

Average 

Class Size

APS Pre-K Pre-K 69 55 56 56 55 55 57 61 63 62 59 59

PGS K 109 5 21.80 137 138 139 139 139 140 139 138 138 139 139 8 17.38

PGS 1 117 6 19.50 111 111 110 108 109 109 109 110 110 110 110 6 18.33

PGS 2 124 6 20.67 121 117 117 115 115 118 118 118 118 118 118 6 19.67

PGS 3 135 7 19.29 130 132 132 132 132 133 133 133 132 132 132 6 22.00

PGS 4 145 7 20.71 135 136 136 135 135 137 137 136 136 134 134 6 22.33

Total in sch 630 634 634 634 629 630 637 636 635 634 633 633

RBS K 104 5 20.80 83 84 84 84 85 87 86 85 87 87 87 5 17.40

RBS 1 69 4 17.25 105 107 107 108 108 107 107 107 108 108 108 5 21.60

RBS 2 116 5 23.20 75 75 75 76 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 4 18.75

RBS 3 92 5 18.40 117 116 116 117 118 118 119 119 119 119 119 6 19.83

RBS 4 107 5 21.40 101 104 105 105 105 105 106 106 106 106 106 5 21.20

Total in sch 488 481 486 487 490 491 492 493 492 495 495 495

TBS 5 240 11 21.82 262 265 265 265 263 263 264 265 264 264 264 12 22.00

TBS 6 270 12 22.50 237 236 236 236 236 238 238 238 238 237 237 12 19.75

Total in sch 510 499 501 501 501 499 501 502 503 502 501 501

AMS 7 244 280 276 276 277 277 278 280 281 280 280 280

AMS 8 275 246 250 250 249 248 248 247 249 249 249 249

Total in sch 519 526 526 526 526 525 526 527 530 529 529 529

AHS 9 239 232 232 231 232 233 233 234 234 233 233 233

AHS 10 248 243 241 242 243 243 245 245 245 245 245 245

AHS 11 233 248 251 250 250 250 251 249 249 249 249 249

AHS 12 219 241 236 235 233 233 234 233 233 233 233 233

Total in sch 939 964 960 958 958 959 963 961 961 960 960 960
Difference 

from 2019

GRAND 

TOTAL 3155 3159 3163 3162 3159 3159 3176 3180 3184 3182 3177 3177 22
112 Choice students are included in enrollment, projection and average class 

size figures

21 Outplaced students were not included in enrollment counts.

26



Annual List of Gifts and Donations SY 2019-2020

6/13/2020

SCHOOL ITEM EST. VALUE
ATHLETICS
Booster Basketball Reversible Pinney $724.00
Booster Scoreboard Controller/Baseball $775.00
Booster Cox Orb Tungsten Devices/Microphones(2) Crew $1,768.00
Booster Body Bars/Power Handles/Weight Room All Teams $480.00
Booster 2 sets Used Golf Clubs/Girls Golf $200.00
Booster Portable Bounce Back Wall Elite XL/Boys Lacrosse $1,800.00
Booster Brine Wall Rebounders 3x4 (2)/Girls Lacrosse $400.00
Booster Laptop Computer/Meet Scoring Software/Swimming and Diving $897.00
Booster Custom Upright Safety Pads/ Volleyball $918.00
Booster Mat Movers-(4)/Wrestling $755.00
Booster 50% of HUDL video contract/Shared with Athletic Department $3,500.00
Booster Two Crew boats(Shells) 55' and 53'/ 8 person $62,145.00
All Sports Banners - School Entrance $900.00
All Sports Refrigerator- Concession Stand $400.00
Booster New Baseball Scoreboard for AHS $3,630.00

 AHS/Athletics Total $79,292.00
AVON HIGH SCHOOL
PTO 8 top table for the students in the gallery – ON 9/24/19 $2,361.80
PTO Boppers DJ for Semi Formal for Student Government – ON 2/15/20 $600.00
Global Companies/Exxon $500 check - 12/18/19 $500.00
Global Companies/Exxon $500 check - 12/18/19 ***This is a second check*** $500.00
PTO 2 standing desks and 2 stools for Jen Greene’s Math classroom - Spring 2020 $1,109.34
PTO Donation towards senior t-shirts $1,000.00
CLASS OF 1969 $350 donation to AHS Student Activity Fund - 11/20/19 $350.00

 AHS Total $6,421.14
AVON MIDDLE SCHOOL
PTO Replacement bladders for yoga ball chairs $344.04
PTO Recess items - footballs & soccer balls $151.98
PTO AMS Staff t-shirts - Reimbursed AMS $492.00
PTO Fall lunch for AMS Staff $450.00
PTO Reimb AMS for shirts given as prize for $50 & greater donation to PTO $888.00
PTO Scholarships- $500 for 8th grade Boston Trip & $14 for genetics conference $514.00
PTO Team Stipend - Ruby Team $291.96
PTO 7th grade scholarships - 7 Peabody Museum & 7 for Christmas Carol show $329.00
PTO 2 7th grade "A Christmas Carol" field trip Scholarships $64.00
PTO Reimb AMS for shirt given as prize for $50 & greater donation to PTO $6.00
PTO Additional 8th grade scholarships for boston trip $368.00
PTO Team Stipend - Amethyst Team $305.78
PTO Rolling desk for Mrs. Huntley $153.99
PTO Team Stipends - Ruby Team $371.01
PTO Additional T-shirt $6.00
PTO Team Stipend - Sapphire Team $596.14
PTO Backpacks for 8th grade trip $425.85
PTO Desserts for AMS Picnic $111.84
PTO Book- Supporting Grade 5-8 Student in Constructing Explanations in Science $39.99
PTO Plants for outside $89.27
PTO Candy for Spiritwear winners $83.96
PTO Snacks for first dance $157.74

27



Annual List of Gifts and Donations SY 2019-2020

6/13/2020

SCHOOL ITEM EST. VALUE
PTO Skittles for Coin drive winning team $76.44
PTO cookies for winter break $64.00
PTO Team Stipends - Special Education $436.15
PTO Coffee for winter breakroom treats $13.99
PTO 18 Ozobots for use in library/media class $839.96
PTO Team Stipend - Wellness - Kickit $129.85
PTO Team Stipend - Diamond Team $383.96
PTO Team Stipend - Music $449.99
PTO Saucer Chair and class rug for L. Cleveland's class $116.87
PTO 10 Nutmeg ebooks $189.07
PTO Team Stipend - Counseling $173.16
PTO Team Stipend - Emeralds $441.87
PTO Supplies for displays, monthly book talks and flex $305.41
AEF Grant VEZ IQ Classroom Bundle (2) $7,699.98
AEF Grant Robot brain $99.99
AEF Grant Robot batterry (2) $39.98
AEF Grant Smart Motor (4) $79.96
AEF Grant Controller Battery (2) $19.98
AEF Grant Cube Kit (2) $59.98

AMS Total $17,861.14
THOMPSON BROOK SCHOOL
PTO TBS T-Shirts for all students & staff $4,800.00
PTO Author Visit - Lauren Tarshis $5,000.00
PTO Battle of the Books sponsorship $5,000.00
PTO Roaring Brook Nature Center $1,310.00
PTO Teacher Stipends $4,300.00
PTO Grounds & Garden/Beautification $100.00
PTO Subsidized items for families with limited income: Book Fair, Yearbooks, After school activities $300.00
PTO Teacher Lounge items: New microwaves, replenished consumeables, $400.00

TBS Total $21,210.00
ROARING BROOK SCHOOL
PTO Faculty Fund $4,800.00
PTO Gifts and Memorial $435.96
PTO Display window and cases $23.76
PTO Orientation Day $790.79
PTO Story Pirates $6,500.00
PTO Staff Appreciation Meals $2,685.82
PTO Kindergarten - supplies/ field trips $900.00
PTO Grade 1 - supplies/ field trips $500.00
PTO Grade 2 - supplies/ field trips $525.00

Grade 3 - supplies/field trips $0.00
PTO Grade 4 - supplies/ field trips $560.50
PTO Special Ed $116.00

RBS Total $17,837.83
PINE GROVE SCHOOL

28



Annual List of Gifts and Donations SY 2019-2020

6/13/2020

SCHOOL ITEM EST. VALUE
Coke vending machine Student Activity Account $76.12
Disney Mathcing Gifts Disney Matching Gifts $500.00
Individual State Farm Companies Founation Matching Gift - Sharon Kim $212.00
United Health Group The Benevity Community Impact Fund (United Health Group) $87.39
PTO Hospitality events: teacher appreciation, conferences, back to school 1,705
PTO In-class field trips: Mystic Aquarium, Roaring Brook Nature Center, Hartford Stage, Historical Society 22,942
PTO New sign for Scoville Road entrance (final payment, previous year they paid $6,000) 6,304
PTO Elkay Water Coolers LZS8WSSK Paid to Avon Plumbing 6/20/19 not recorded on last year's list $4,420.00
PTO Teacher Stipends $5,976.00
PTO Courtyard Maintenance, Entryway Flowers and grounds $93.00
PTO City Bench - Makerspace in the Library $19,040.00
PTO Class Field Trips $22,941.95

PGS Total $84,297.45

GRAND TOTAL OF DONATIONS $226,919.56

29



AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST

2019 -2020

TRANSFER# 2020. 019

J 1,:0;:1.S=.1�10�5:::.6:!.::11:.-_______ �=-=�=.===:.::.:=�=-------t-----4-33_4_.2-t7 'lJ-1. 
F 

��R1-. __________ _,_ _____________ ,.__ _____ _ 
o _______________________________ ..,,
M...,_ __________ _.., _____________ +---------1.

T
0

TOTAL $4,334.27

A.rrnlJNT ·-
- -

AAJllnUNT I 111 -■-■ 

01.5.1100.611 Instr Suanllesllnstructtcnnes S4.334.27

TOTAL

EXPLAIN THE REASON F.OR THE TRANSFER:
Transfers for pre-buvs 

$4,334.27

•••NET BAlANCE 11TO" AND "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.•••

_William Duffy_ ___ 5/28/2020
ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL Date

Date

Ma:t 29, 2020
Date

Board of Education Approval Date

Bridget H. Carnemolla

30



31



F 

R 

0 

M 

T 
f-1".0 

.. 
ACCOUNT NUMBER 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION 

2020- oro 

AMOUNT 

01.1.1241.516 Transoortation7ASARP7Ff�dTrios/AHS $700.001 
.. - ·--

.. 

.. . 

TOTAL $700.00 

ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

01.1.1100.730 Equipment/lnstruction/AHS 

. -

.. . . ·- - ... 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

-

.. 

. .... . 

$700.00 

.. 

-

$700.00 

Transfer of funds needed to purchase a reetacement dryer to the Special Education Classroom 
·-·-• . - . -·· . '. . • . ' ' . . . . . • -· . • . .  ··•-• -1-- . � . . • 

***NET BALANCE nro11 AND "FROM1t SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL 

Date 

Date 

May26,2020 

Date 

Board of Education Approval Dale 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

32



33



34



F 
R 
0 
M 

T 
�0 

.ACCOUNT NUMBER 

01.1.2210.330 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 
. .

01.1.1100.600 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION 

· Professional Dev/AHS
.. 

TOTAL 

DESCRIPTION. 

General SUDDlies/lnstructlon/AHS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

2020- o°t>\ 

AMOUNT 

$4.500.00 

.. 

$4,500.00 

AMOUNT 

$4,500.00 
.. 

. .  

$4,500.00 

Transfer of funds to purchase Fuzzy Feet for the remafng half of the desks and chairs on the 
second floor of AHS. These are needed to reduce the noise heard on the first floor of all desks 
and chairs moving around above. 

***NET BALANCE '1"011 AND "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLIAR. ***

ADMJNISTRATORIDIRECTOR APPROVAL 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL 

Date 

Date 

May26,2020 

Date 

Board of Education Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

35



36



37



OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT 

FROM: 
ACCOUNT NUMBER 
01.6.2600.614 

01.8.2500.430 

TO: 
ACCOUNT NUMBER 
01.6.2600.613 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION 
Maintenance SupoUes/Plant Operatccns/PGS 
RepaiislMafnt/central Svcs/OW 

TOTAL 

DESCRIPTION 
Custodial SUDOHeS/Plant OperationSIPGS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

Cleaning products more expensive for Coranavirus
Prebuy 

2020- a$a 
AMOUNT 

s· 2.217 

s 682 

AMOUNT 

$ 2.899 

$2,899 

''TOu AND ••FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

l ft� ........ ftEAPPROVAL 

-
VVI .. 

DATE 
May26.2020 

DATE 
Bridget H. Carnemolla

38



AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT 

FROM: 
ACCOUNT NUMBER
01.1.2600.430 

TO· 
ACCOUNT NUMBER

01.3.2600.613 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

Cleaning products more expensive for Coranavirus
Prebu 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION 
Reoatrs & S\ICS/Malnt/Plant Ooeratfons/AHS

TOTAL 

DESCRIPTION 

Custodial Su001fes/Plant onaratfonslRBS 

TOTAL 

2020. of>3 

AMOUNT 
$ 3.671 

$3,671.00 

AMOUNT 
$ 3.671 

$3,671 

� •••NET BALANCE "Ton AND "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

�R�of/e(

�D nc CIMAMrs: APPROVAL DATE 

(_ May26, 2020 

BOARD OF EDUCATION DATE 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

39



AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT 

FROM: 
ACCOUNT NUMBER 
01.1.2600,613 

TO: 
ACCOUNT NUMBER 
01.5.2600.613 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 
Cleaning products more expensive fer Coranavtrus
Prebuy 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION
.. Custodlal sucolfes#Plant Ooeratlons/AHS

· TOTAL

DESCRIPTION
Custodial Suppllas/Plant Ooerat!onsfTSS

. 

TOTAL 

. 
2020· 02> '-'\ 
AMOUNT 

s 3,018 

$3,018 

AMOUNT 

$ 3.018 

$3,018 

BALANCE c•TO" AND .. FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.*" 
...

ft� "" ... '':EAPPROVAL DATE 
May26,2020 

DATE 

BOARD OF EDUCATION DATE 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

40



I 

I 

! 

I 
I 

AVON PUBUC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT 
TRANSFER# 2020. o<&5 

TOTAL $3,467 
Ttl.• 

! ........ _ ....... 
·- AUl"\ljNT 

i 017 ---- -.;";. ,� 
·- .. ··- . - .. 

. .. s �.d.A.7 . 

' l - -------·· 
I 

I ·1

: I

!
' 

I

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 
Cleaning products more expensive for Coranavirus 

NET BALANCE "T011 AND "FROM'' SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR."•• 

Sl( 
DAT}! BOARD OF EDUCATION DATE 

ft�,.. ,...,. ..... • ••".e APPROVAL DATE 

_ _ _ours;ncn,� .. ��PROVAL DATE

I 

$3.467 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

41



AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT 
TRANSFER# wo..ol-b-

EROM• 
t lCCOUNI..NUMSER -

I n<1 'l '7Rnn e<1 A 
I 

I 0U.2600,614 ·- --·-· 

I ,4 Ill �i;:nn A"24 

i ,t 111-,.::on-• 
! • 1.8.2600.614 

.OESCRIP-tJON .• AMOUN.'t----

i ... :..tanance.Su00Hes/eJant..0oeratlcms/RBS-
taJntenanca.S -,ana.eneratfons/ISS .. - . .  - ---
- ·. ·-

.. 
. noemuc-.. m�� 

-�"'lntananca.S - aat.Oaetations/DW. ·- , 

"95.00� 

_-845.QOM 

., ....... 
t t'l1 

I 142. 

I 

I 

�

�
t 4 a. ""-CO. It!• "'\Aaintenanca.SuactieslP.lanlDMratioAS/eGS- :t 264. J

]1 __ - .. ...., -
TOTAL 54.380 

···-· . ·- . 

. 14 IA' ---i- O -
- ·aueiaat.0

.. --- 1 .ei :1 no.�
11 I IC - nf'u!I .. GtlftQsJAMS t A' ,i::.nn 

,t
. A eoalts.&:.Sv.cslMafnl/eJanLOs:,eratiooslRBs..._ 71 8.QQ_, 

! U.2600.430 : eaairs &.SvcslMainUElanLOceratfonsaBS -· 496.00 •. � .........
--- -·

I 

TOTAL 54.380 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

Unanlfcfpated repairs -Plumbing. Sprinkler. �a!M;cer■cA11111Jawan.._ _____________________ _ 

... NET BALANCE tt'fO" AND "FROM"' SHOULD EQUAL ZERO, ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR:-

�� /�-APMINis �biio#ts�oVAL DA¥ 
BOARD OF EDUCATION DATE. 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

42



F 
R 
0 
M 

T 
�o 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

01.1.2210.330 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

01.1.1100.600 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGETTRANSFERREQUEST 

2019 -2020 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION 

Professional Dev/AHS 

TOTAL 

DESCRIPTION 

General SuDDlles/lnstruction/AHS 
. .  

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

2020- 0559> 

AMOUNT 

. $4.000.00 

$4,000.00 

AMOUNT. 

$4,000.00. 

$4,000.00 

_ Transfer of funds to �urchase Fuzzy Feet for half the desks and chairs on the second floor of AHS. 
These are needed lnorder to reduce the noise heard on the first floor of all desks and chairs 
moving around above. 

***NET BAlANa "TO'* AND °FROM
a 

SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOllAR.••• 

ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL Date 

rw·-·····-• ·---,AL Date 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL Date 

Board of Education Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

43



44



45



F 
R 
0 
M 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

4/30/20 TRANSFER# 

ACCOUNT NUMBl;R 12ESCBleIIO� 
01.3.2210.330 Professional Devefoament/RBS 

TOTAL 

ACCOUNT NI l&At:u:�o DESCRIPTION 

2020- ocas 
_4MQUNT 

$2,205.00 

S2.205.00 

.AMOUNT 

. 01.3.1104.611 Instr Suaalies/Lana Arts/RBS S1.200.00 

T 
0 

01.3.1103.611 Instr Supolles/Math/RBS 
01.3.1100.611 . Instr Supolfes/lnstructlon/RBS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

transfer money for prebuy 2020/21 

$250.00 
$755.00 

$2,205.00 

•••NET BALANCE 11TO" AND nFROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL 

WOF FINAN!:F APPROVAL 

suPERINTENOENT APPROVAL 

Date 

Date 

May26,2020 

Date 

Board of Education Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

46



47



AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

4/30/20 TRANSFER# 2020-090 

ACCnl INT NUMR�R DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
J01.3.1114.611 Instr SuoDlles/Enrlchment/RBS $2,368.00 "' 

F1--------......+---------��------1���ttfJ
R S-'-" 
OL-------------1---------------+---------1 
M.,__ __________ --1---------------1---------1 

T 
0 

TOTAL $2,368.00 

ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION AMOUNT. 
01.3.1105.611 Instr Supolles/Soclal Studies/RBS $2,368.00 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

Prebuy 2020/21 

$2,368.00 

***NET BALANCE "TO" AND 11FROM11 SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL Date 

Date 

Dale 

Board or Education Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

48



49



F 
R 
0 
M 

T 
0 

ACCOI INT NI IMBER 

01.S.2220.611
01.S.2220.642 
015.2220.730
01.5.2230.650
01.S.2400.430
01.S.2400.5S0
01.5.2400.690

ACCOUNT NI IMBER 

01.S.1100.611

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019 -2020 

TRANSFER# 

na::s.-.�;;:TiON 

Instr Supplies/Librarv/Multfmedfa/TBS 
Ubrarv Books/llbrarv Media/MulUmedia/TBS 

Equlament/Librarv Media/Multimedia/TBS 
Tachnoto11v Supolles/lnstructton R�lated Tech./TBS 
Reoafts/Malnt/Schools/TBS 
Printing/Schools/TBS 
Other Suoplies/Schools/TBS 

TOTAL 

.DESCRIPTION 

Instr Supplies/lnstrucUon/TBS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

Transfer for pre buys. 

2020 .g;3 l
.AMnllNT 

2022.13 J 
us ll 

1446.02 � 
202.02 I 

1s.00 V 
468.81 'iJ 
722.23 J 

$4,880.36 

AMOUNT 

'$4.880.3.6 

$4,880.36 

***NET BALANCE 1
1T011 AND "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

_William Duffy_ _ __ 5/4/2020 
Date 

Date 

Ma,x26,2020 
Date 

Board of Education Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

50



51



F 

R 

0 

M 
: 

T 

�o 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

01.1.1308.600 

ACCOUNT NUMBER. 

01.1.2400.730 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019· 2020 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION-

General Suoolies/Student Activities 

TOTAL 

DESCRIPTION. 

Eauioment/AHS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

2020- o9a 

AMOUNT 

$2,313.00 

$2,313.00 

AMOUNT 

$2,313.00 

$2,313.00 

: Transfer of funds needed to purchase table with stools for the students in the 
high school gallery 

***NET BALANCE 11T011 AND "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.•••

ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL 

"'" ,.,.,. .,n,- •=""VAL 

-
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL 

Date 

Date 

May26,2�0 

Date 

Board of Education Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

52



53



54



F 

R 

0 

M 

T 

0 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

Date Completed: 
4/30/2020 
Kim Powell 

TRANSFER# 2020- 0°'2 _ 
i ���:--.: lNT tJ1-- -- -- : QESCBleIIQN 

!01.6.2230.650 Technoloe.v Suoolles/lnstructfon Related Tech./PGS 

; 

l 

' 
I 

.A��nlJNT tJI � 

i 

TOTAL 

i 
-
■ --

-
I 

111 Jnll 

01.6.1308.600 '.Gen Sunnlies/Student Activlties/PGS 

I 
I 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

Technology Supplies will not be needed due to Covid-19 

J AMnlJNT 

! $285.04
!

I 

,, 
$285.04 

' 
A.Mnt•NT

j $285.04 
: 
I 

I 

$285.04 

This transfer will allow us to purchase the One School One Book for students in 2020-2021 

***NET BALANCE 11T011 AND 11FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.*** 

ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL 

Dale 

Date 

May19,2020 

Date 

Board of Education Approval Dale 

I 

'IP o.•')9 
s·, 

I 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

55



56



AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019 -2020 

TRANSFER# 

Date Completed: 
4/30/2020 

Kim Powell 

2020 -o<\'-\ 

c:::A���yj�cj���i�t::::JQj�iii�����=:::::::::::::Jc::::]Aj�owuw� 
F 1nm Su lics/1:!nrichmc:nr/PGS S1195.52 j (lJJ 

� 'l, 'O
R Ol.6.12I0.611 ln�tr Su o lics/SrEP Pm, PC,S S0.17 

/ �X: 
0 01.6.1308.340 Contracted S\:cs/Srudcnt ,\ctMtic:s/PGS . $450.(Jl) j
M 01 .6.24()().734 ·rc:chnol<J�• F.t ui mc:nr/Schcmls/PGS Sl,540.00 

T 

0 

TOTAL 

ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

01.6.1100.611 Instr Supplies/lnstruction/PGS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

$4,885.69 

AMOUNT 
$4,885.69 

$4,885.69 

Due to school closing for Covid-19- these lines will not be used as anticipated. We will purchase 
supplies .for the upcoming school year to give capacity In next year's budget 

•••NET BALANCE 11T011 AND 11FROM11 SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE APPROVAL 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL 

Date 

Date 

May26.2020 

Date 

Board of Education Approval Dale 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

57



58



F 

R 

0 

M 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

01.2.2210.330 

01.2.1108.430 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

01.2.2230.�0 

01.2.1111.611 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION 

Professional Develocment/AMS 

Repalrs/Maint Music/AMS 

TOTAL 

DESCRIPTION 

Technology Supplies/Instruction Related Tech/AMS 

Instr SuppllesJWorld Lang/AMS 

2020- o°).5 

AMOUNT 

4,150.00 

454.00 

4,604.00 

AMOUNT 

4,554.00 

50.00 

T1------------l�-----����---+------1 
0 ....._ __________ -lJ----------,o1����---+-----1

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

To Purchase Annual Support Plan for W.L. Lab. technology suppfies & world language supplies 

... NET BALANCE '"TO• AND "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.-

�" .,,.,. ,., • .,..,,..,.. APPROVAL DATE 

May28'2020 ----..--:::.&.::;::.:.=
DA

::.
l'

-E 

BOARD OF EDUCATION APPROVAL DATE 

4,604.00 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

59



60



F 

R 

0 

M 

' 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

01.2.1106.430 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION 

ReoairslMaint /M usidAMS 

�020- Q9l0 ..

AMOUNT 

1.235.00 j 

01.2.1102.430 Repairs/Mainl/Science/AMS 700.00 J
01.2.2210.330 Professional Development/AMS 957.00 

TOTAL 2.892.00 

ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

01.2.1102. 730 Equipment/Science/AMS 2.550.00 

01.2.1102.611 Instr Supplies/Science/AMS 310.00 

v 

T ._ _____ 0 _1 _.2 _.1 _24...;5...;.s __ 1..;..1 _____ --1-_____ 1n_s_tr_s....::up�p-ne_s1_MA_R_c_1A_M_s ____ --1-____ 32_.o--10

0 
1------------------11-------,-,.PI,1��------r------t 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

_ To Purchase scien c e  equipment, science s upplies, a nd MARC supplies 

- NET BALANCE "TO,. ANO "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR. ... 

� .'-OM-IN_STRA 
__ JO_RIO ___ tR""'"'EC

__,
T...,0-RA_P _P_RCN-

:AL ______ DA:_
l'E
_ 

"'� "c: c:1•1.u,,-1: APPROVAL DATE 

Mav2s. 2020 
OV.-:A-L ---------DA: .... :TE .... 

BOARD OF EDUCATION APPROVAL DATE 

2,892.00 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

61



62



F 

R 

0 

M 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

01.2.1308.600 

01.2.1308.590 

01.2.1106.430 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

01.2.1112.611 

01.2.2400.690 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION 

Gen Supplies/Student Activities/AMS 

Othr Purch Svcs/Student Activities/AMS 

Repairs/Maint/Musfc/AMS 

TOTAL 

DESCRIPTION 

Instr Supplies/Wellness Ed/AMS

Other Supplies/Schools/AMS 

2020-0°11 

AMOUNT 

505.00 I 

845.00 � 

583.00 J 

' .

1,933.00 

AMOUNT 

1,556.00 

an.oo 

T .__ __________ --l�--------------t----1

0 
1-------------------11---------�r---------+------1 

TOTAL 1,933.00 
EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

To purchase wellness supplies and tocks 

- NET BALANCE "TO
'" 

ANO °FROM'' SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.-

� .DMl�N-SlM-"'"":TO!"'!R/0------~IR"!"!'EC'Ji!!!"""!'!"!OR-AP-PR-O-VP._L ______ DA_
:T

_E 
BOARD OF EDUCATION APPROVAL DATE 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

63



64



F 

R 

0 

M 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

01.2.1308.890 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION 

Fees & Memberships/Student Activities/AMS 

TOTAL 
� 

ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

01.2.1104.641 Texlbook§IJ,.anguage Arts/AMS 

01.2.1104.611 Instructional Supplies/La�g Arts/AMS 

T 01.2.1105.611 Inst Suppl�es/Social Studles/AMS 

0 01.2.1302.655 

TOTAL 
EXPLAINTHE REASONFORTHETRANSFER: 

To purchase Language Arts Textbooks (To KiU A Mockingbird), Lang. Arts Supplies (Class ··· 

Social Studies Supplies, and lnterscholasUc Supplies 

- NET BALANCE "TO" AND "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.-

,... 

2020-C>'32> 

AMOUNT 

2.805.00 

2,805.00 

AMOUNT 

573.00 

466.00 

1,626.00 

140.00 

2,805.00 

.oM�IN'!'!!'
STAA

!!!'!!!"'!"!!
:Ji

!!"!!!O'!!"
R/
----DIR

----E!!"!!!CT-O!!"!!!R
""'!'

AP
"!""!!
P
!!"!!!
R

"!"!'
OV.��-----'!!"'DA

"""'
TE

'!!"' 
BOARD OF EDUCATION APPROVAL DATE 

=-:-ov._� 
_____ M_ay_20,_2_;_:_Bridget H. Carnemolla

65



66



F 

R 

0 

M 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

01.2.1107.611 
01.2.2210.330 
01.2.2400.430 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

01.2.1106. 730 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION 

Instr Supplies/Tech Ed/AMS 

Professional Development/AMS 

Repairs/Maint/Schools/AMS 

TOTAL 

DESCRIPTION 

Equipment/Music/AMS 

2020-cfe 

AMOUNT 

27.00 
62.00 

1.890.00 

1,979.00 

AMOUNT 

1,979.00 

----------------------------------------------1

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

To purchase music equipment 

- NET BALANCE ''T011 AND "FROM11 SHOULO EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.-

1,979.00 

� 
,'o!!ll!M""'!'!IIN_S_fRA-TO_RIO_IRE_Cl_O .... R_A .. PP_R _O_

:VA
_L _____ OA_T_E 

O

-

:VA

_

L 

___
_ Ma_y_2_0._202_

::
-

:
-

E 

BOARD OF EDUCATION APPROVAL DATE 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

67



68



"' 

F 

R 
0 
M 

Ar.�nt INT tJI 

1182510 530 

....... _ -- •·- .. . . .. . . 

A.r.r.nt INT tJI ·-

r11 7 ?�?n s�o 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

TRANSFER# 

_...:__ --· 

I ■--■ --■- 111 •� 

i:»ostart�Business Services 

TOTAL 

I I 
- - .

! 111 H\I 

11 
bther �, .... ·· ·-:entral Admin 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN 1HE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER:

folders paper pens pencils office supplies 

2020.-.iCO 

A.MntJNT 

U.500.00

$4,500.00 

i A.Mnl�NT 

! M.500.00
' 
! 

I 

$4,500.00 

•••NET BALANCE 11T0
11 

AND 11FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL 

suPERINTENDENT APPROVAL 

Date 

Date 

May26,20�0 
Date 

Board of Education Approval Date 

i 

: 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

69



F 
R 
0 
M 

T 
0 

ArrnlJNT Ml 1A.11of!!o 

01-3-1308-516

ACCOUNT NI IUDCD

01-3-1104-611

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

TRANSFER# 

Qf;§�BleIIQ� 

Transoortation/Studenl Activities/RBS 

TOTAL 

01;sc�•PTION 

Instr. Suoolies/LA/RBS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

Transfer for Prebuy 2020121 

2020- \I\ 

AMQIINT 

S299.00 

$299.00 

6.MQIINT 

$299.00 

$299.00 

•••NET BALANCE 11T011 AND "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE APPROVAL 

-

Date 

Dale 

May26.2020 

Date 

Board or Education Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

70



71



F 

R 

0 

M 

T 

0 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019 • 2020 

TRANSFER# 

ACCOUNT NUMBf;R oes��IPTION' 

01.6.2210.330 Professional Develooment/PGS 

TOTAL 

ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

01.6.1111.611 Instr SUDDlles/World Lane/PGS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

New World Language Program was approved for use during Distance Learning 
World Language Teachers need memberships 

Date Completed: 

5/4/2020 

Kim Powell 

2020 - lO� 

AMOUNT. 

S3<,2.iK 

$362.78 

AMOUNT 

SJ(•2.i8 

$362.78 

. ***NET BALANCE "TO" AND "FROM0 SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.*** 

ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL 

Dale 

Date 

May 26, 2020 

Date 

Board of Education Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

72



73



F 
R .O.P.611 

0 10.6 1. 
M 08.340 

T 
0 

1308.516 
1308 600 
120.611 

D1.S.2i10.8S0 

I A.rrn, �NT ._ .. --

�5.1100.611 

-··- -

--

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019 -2020 

TRANSFER# 

TOTAL 

I IH■N 

nstr Suoolfes/lnstructfann'BS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

Transfer fer pre buys 

2020- iQ3 

AAlntJNT 

$4.763.05 

I 

$4,763.05 

***NET BALANCE "TO" AND "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

__ William Duffy_ _ __ 5/28/2020 
ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL Date 

Date 

Max 29, 2020 

Date 

Soard of Education Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

74



75



F 
M 
0 
M 

T 
0 

I 

; 

i 

I 
! 

I 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019 ·2020 

Date Completed: 

4/30/2020 
Kim Powell 

TRANSFER# 2020 -JoL\ 

a -.• -,.- - . ·• I.II 1aaD�ft 
-

I A,Ul"\l�NT 111_.1111 

0t.6.1100.730 1Eauiomcnt/lnstn1ction/ PGS ii $2.85U1 IJ 
01.6.1102.611 lnstr SuP-0lics/Sclcncc/PGS I $83.92 ✓ 
0t.6.1308.516 tl'ranmortation/Studcnt Acdvitics/PGS I ssn .84 J

0t.6.2210.890 IFccs & Mc:mbersbios/Prof-Membcrshios/PGS 546.00 J

0t.6.2230.650 rrcchnology Supplics/lnstn1ction Related •rcch. ! $14.96 J
0t.6.2400.550 lt>rinting/Schools/PGS i S653.61 J 
0t.6.2400.690 !Qrhcr Suoolics/Schools/PGS 

TOTAL 

AN''l'\IJNT Ml -- -- --
-

'111_i111 

01.6.1100.611 Instr Sup�Ues/lnstructlon/PGS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

:! $226.02 

$4,388.16 

I AUl'\IINT 

I S4.388.16 

II 

$4,388.16 

Due to school closing for Covid-19 - these lines will not be used as anticipated. We will purchase 
supplies for the upcoming school vear to give capacity fn next year's budget. 

•••NET BAlANCE "TO" AND 11FROM11 SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL 

*Approved - H. Michaud

Date 

05/28/2020 

Date 

May _28, 2020 

Date 

Board of Education Approval Date 

,,J 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

76



77



F 
R 
0 
M 

T 
0 

ACCOUNT tdl" 

01.5.1102.611 

ACCOUNT NUMAER 

01.5.1100.611 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

. -

TRANSFER# 

DEA�AIPTION 

Instr Supplies/Science/TBS 

.. . 

TOTAL 

DESCRIPTION. 
Instr Supplles/lnstructfon/TBS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 
Transfers for pre-buys 

2020- lD5 
. ·- ••-• -1 

AMOUNT 
3492.85 

$3.492.85 

AMOUNT 
$3.492.85 

$3.492.85 

•••NET BALANCE 11T011 AND 11FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

_William Duffy_ ___ 5/28/2020 

ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL Date 

Date 

Max29,2020 

Date 

Board of EducaUon Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

78



79



F 

R 

& -- ---■---■ 
-..... --

01.5.1104.611 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019 ·2020 

TRANSFER# 

D 11ON 

. Instr SuppRes/Laog Arts/TBS 

2020- \O'D 

AMOUNT 

2764.23 

o _________________________ ,..... _____ .., 
M1--------------1--------------1-------"""I 

T 
0 

•��n1 •NT NUMBER

TOTAL 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

01.5.1100.611 Instr SuppUes/lnstructlan/rBS $2,764.23 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

Transfers for pre.buys 

$2,764.23 

***NET BALANCE 11TO" AND "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

__ William Duffy_ ___ 5/28/2020 
ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL Date 

Date 

MaX29,2020 

Date 

Board of EducaUon Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

80



81



AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019-2020 

TRANSFER# 2020- 1D1 

F 01.s.1100.130 1s11.1a 1 

�0_15_.1_1_os_��11----------+------------.;...-------+-------2_2_1.
--1

42�®,��1P 

T 

0 

01.5.1106.730 207 56 6' � 

015.1109.611 522.71 ,,,,,. 

015.1111.611 3358 ' 

A.��nlJNT ._ ..
- -

■---- -·-· •· .... 

01.S.1100.611 Instr Suantles/lnstructtonhBS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 
Transfers for pre-buvs 

$2.690.45 

A1U1n1•NT 

$2.690.45 

$2,690.45 

***NET BALANCE "TO" AND "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

__ William DuffY._ ___ 5/28/2020 
ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL Cate 

Date 

Ma1291 2020 
Date 

Board or Education Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

82



83



F 
R 
0 
M 

T 
0 

A.rrnlJNT ..-1 

01.5.1114.611 

Acr.nlJNT .... 

01.5.1100.611 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019 ·2020 

TRANSFER# 

ru;sb-■ ... , .�� 

Instr Supplfes/EnrlchmenthBS 

TOTAL 

. I IL.HIii 

Instr SuoaUes/lnstructfon/l'BS 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER:· 
Transfer for pre buys 

2020· ID$ 

AMOUNT 

2360.33 

$2,360.33 

A.MOUNT 

$2,360.33 

$2,360.33 

***NET BALANCE 11TO11 AND "FROM11 SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.*** 

_WHliam Duffy_ _ __ 5/28/2020 
ADMINISTRATOR/DIRECTOR APPROVAL Date 

Date 

Ma129,2020 

Date 

Board or Education Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

84



85



F 
R 
0 
M 

T 
0 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

2019•2020 

At!t!OUNT Ml , .. aca

01.6.1102.611 
01.6.1104.611 
01.6.1200.611 
01.6.2210.330 
01.6.2210.330 

TRANSFER# 

! D,��-��-� ■ .QN

lnslr Sunolics/Scicnce/POS 
instr Sunnlics/Lan11 Arts/PGS 
lnstr Sunnlics/Sncclal Ed/POS 
:professional Devcloomcnt/PGS 
Professional Dcvclonmcnl/PGS 

Prepared by: Kim 
Powell 
Date: 5/29/2020 

2020- lo9 

i AMD(INT I. 

$22.61 I 
S1.302.SI r 

S6.13 r 
S333.95 � 

S0.87 I 
01.6.2210.890 Pees & Mcmbcrshlns/ProfMcmbcrshios/PGS i S296.00 � 
i> 1.6.2400.430 Rcnalrs/Maint/Schcols/PGS i SI00.00 .J 
·ou.1100.611 �nstr Sunnlies/lnstnacdon/PGS I Sll.00 f 
'01.6.1100.611 instr Suoolies/lnstnsclion/PGS i $826.62 � 
01.6.1100.611 1fnstr Sunnlics/lnstnaction/POS ' S915.23 r 

bu.1210.611 �nstr Sunnlies/STEP ProaJPOS . S2.78 ( 
101.6.l 100.600 hen Suuolies/lnstruction/PGS I SO.BS " 
101.62220.611 Inst Suoolics/Librarv/MultimcdialPOS S0.34 i,, 

TOTAL Sl,sss,2,. 

\ 

A��ntJNT NllMRS:� ! . eTrt'IN i A.MftlJNT ! 
01.6.2150.611 �nstr SuonlicslSoccch & Hearinall'GS ' 

01.6.1308.590 bthr Purch Svcs/Student Activitics/POS i 

01.6.i 103.61 I �nstr SunnlieslMath/PGS I 

01.6.1103.6i I ·lnstr Sunnlics/Moth/POS ! . 

Dl.6.1103.611 lnstr Sunnlics/Math/PQS l 

01.6.1103.611 ;nstr Suonlies/Math/POS ' 

01.6.1103.611 lnstr Sunotlcs/Math/POS ! 

01.6.1103,611 instr Sunolics/Math/POS ; 

:ol.6.1103.61 I Instr SuonUes/Math/PGS l 

·ou.1103.611 itnstr SunnHcs/Math/PGS ! 

01.6.110S.611 �nslt SuDDlies/Sccial Studies/PGS ! 
:01.6.1105.61 I instr Sunnlics/Social Studies/POS i 

=ou.11os.611 instr Sunnlics/Social StudicslPOS ! 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

Move Funds to allow purchase of Social Studies and Math Materials due to budget cuts 
Invoice from Nutrition Services 01.6.1308.690 
Remainder to fix negaUve balances 

S0.87; 
S21.00 ! 
$22.61 

S l1302.S8 
S6.13 ! 
$2.78. 

$296.00 I 
$826.62 

SO.BS 
S0.34 

S333.9S 
$975.23 
SI00.00 

s�3as.96 

•••NET BALANCE ayon ANO "FROMn SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.••• 

ADMINISTRATORIOIRECTOR APPROVAL 

OF FINAN<".E APPROVAL 

. . . .. 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL 

Date 

Date 

May 29, 2020 

Date 

Board of Educatfon' Approval Date 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

86



87



F 
R 
0 
M 

T 
0 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 2019 • 2020 

TRANSFER# 2020-111 

ACCOUNT NUMRER D&SCRJPnON AMOUNT 

•Pfease see attached. Salarv & Benefits Transfer 260,146.19 

TOTAL 260,148.19 

ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

•Pf ease see attached. Safarv & Benefits Transfer 260.146.19 

TOTAL 260,148.19 
EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

The transfer wRI fund existing and anticipated variances In the salary and benaffls Unes such as over1fme. rong term subs. 

executed MOU unbudaated pavments. health Insurance admfn fees. emplover 4038 war end contributions, and the

emp!ovee assistance program. 

-NET BALANCE -ro• AND "FROM" SHOULD EQUAL ZERO. ROUHD TO 1ICE NSAAE8T DOLLAR.-

ADMINSTRA10R/DIREC10RAPPROVAL OAlE 

N
� 

Nlll:tUAMNiN'PROVA1. DAlE 

BOARD CF &DUCATtON APPROVAL DAT& 

JuneB, 2020 

· N.
------�-:re

-Bridget H. Carnemolla

88



89



90



AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 2019 .. 2020 

TRANSFER# 2020-112 

F 

R 

0 

M 

T 

0 

ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

..,,ease see attached. NutrlUon Services Onaratlona / Laael Fees 

TOTAL 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

•Please see attached.

TOTAL 
EXPLAIN THE REASOH FOR THE TRANSFER: 

DESCRIPTION 

Nutrition Services Onaratfona / Leaal Fees 

The transfer will fund exlaUng and antidpated variances In the Legal & Consulting Services One relating to 

NutrlUon Services overhead and legal fees. 

-Nl!TBALANCE-ro• AND-FROM•SHOULDl!GUALZl!RO- ROUNDTOflC&NeAR&STOOLLAR.-

AOMlNSTRATORIDIRECTORAPPROVAL DATE BOARD OF EOUOATICIN APPROVAL OATE 

ftc m MHll'CAPPflOVAL 
JuneB,�

TE 

----
� DATE 

AMOUNT 

257.528.02 

267,126.02 

257.528.02 

257,626.02 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

91



92



F 

R 

0 

M 

T 

0 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 2019 • 2020 

TRANSFER# 2020-113 

ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

•pteaae sea attached. lnstructfonal Stmnl!ea. Materials, Fumlture. 

TOTAL 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

-Please sea attached. 

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

Dl!SCRIPTION 

tnslructfcnal SUDDlles. Materfals. Furniture. 

The transfer will fund existing and antlclpated variances In fnatructlonal related fines covering YE purchases mcludfng 

AMOUNT 

547,298.40 

547,298.40 

AMOUNT 

647.298.40 

547,298A0 

Chromabooks. onlfne subserfpUans to support remote teamlnq
1 
new ELA matarfala. textbooks. leveled readers & ctasaroom 

Dbrarfes. varfcua furniture and a unlversal assessement platfcrm. 

-NETBALANCE"TOII AND-FROM•SHOULD EQUAi.ZERO. ROUND TO THE NEAR&ST DOLLAR.-

ADMINSTRATOM>IRECTORAPPROYAL BOARD OF EDUCATION APPROVAL DATE 

Bridget H. Carnemolla

93



94



F 

R 

0 

M 

T 

0 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 2019 • 2020 

ACCOUNT NUMBl!R 

•Please see attached.

TOTAL 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

•praase see attached.

TOTAL 

EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

TRANSFER# 

DESCRIPTION 

Safatv & Securltv. 

DESCRIPTION 

Safety & Securftv. 

The transfer wHI fund axlstlnq and antlclpated variances In DW aafety and aecurltv / maintenance tines to cover 

PPE. bottle ftlllng staUons, temperature scanners and other reopenlnp needs • 

... Nl!TBALANC& -n,-AND•FROM-aKOULD EQUALzeRO. ROUKD1011C& NEAR£8TDOLLAR.-

2020-114 

AMOUNT 

105.941.99 

105,941.99 

AMOUNT 

105.941.99 

105,941.99 

ADMIHSTRATOAIDIRECTORAPPROVAL OATS BOARD OF eiiUcATICNAPPROYAL DATE 

•••1_ce_M_PRCN 
__ N. ____ wrw:�ilKl:TE-�- lvoea. 2920 

SUPERtNTENDENT N'PROVAL DA1E 
Bridget H. Carnemolla

95



96



F 

R 

0 

M 

T 

0 

AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 201.9 • 2020 

TRANSFER# 2020-115 

ACCOUNT NUMBl!R 

•Please see attached.

TOTAL 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

•Pfease see attached.

TOTAL 
EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THE TRANSFER: 

DESCRIPTION 

� .• 

ReDalrs & Maintenance. 

DSSCAIPTION 

O�t!onA. Reca&s & Mafntenance. 

The transfer wDI fund extsUng and anticipated varrances tn OW aperaUons lfnes as well as fund a plow truck. several 

AMOUNT 

362,237.64 

382,237.64 

AMOUNT 

362.237.54 

382,237.64 

skylight repabs (TBS/PGS). PA System replacement (TBS), LED lfghUng replacements CAMS), Security Armms (AMS/RBS). 

HVAC Conlrol System (AMS) • 

... HS BALANce-ro• AND "FROM· SHOULD ECUALZERO. ROUND T01M& NIAREST DOUAR.-

ADMIN81RATORIDIREC1"0RNIPROVAL DATE 

�- -- .... - •,ppROVAL DATE 

BOARD OF EDUCATION APPROVAL DATE 

Junes, 2020 Bridget H. Carnemolla

97



98



To:     Dr. Bridget Carnemolla 

From:     Timothy Filon 

Date:    June 10th, 2020 

Subject: Request for Accepting Gift from Avon High School Friends of Baseball 

Dear Dr. Carnemolla: 

The Athletic Department is requesting that the Board of Education accept the donation of a new 
scoreboard for the baseball field at AHS. 

Scoreboard Description: 
1-OES Baseball Scoreboard Model 7615 $ 3,280.0 
4’ x 9’ with Home and Guest Scores, Inning to 9 
Balls, Strikes and Out Dots. 

1-Wireless outdoor receiver package 900mhz $ 350.00 

Total cost of donation: $ 3,360.00 

The Athletic Department, Friends of Baseball and the Avon High School Baseball Team appreciate your 
consideration in this matter. 

Thank You, 

Timothy Filon 
Athletic Director 
Avon High School 

99



English Language Arts 
Grades K-5 

English Language Arts 
Grades K-6 

English Language Arts 
Grade 12 

English Language Arts 
Grade 12 

English Language Arts 
Grade 12 

English Language Arts 
Grade 12 

English Language Arts 
Grade 12 

English Language Arts 
Grade 12 

CPDC Primary Instructional Materials Recommendations to BOE May 2020 

Units of Study for Teaching Reading 

Units of Study in Opinion, Information, 
and Narrative Writing 

A Visit From the Goon Squad 

Extremely Loud and Incredibly Close 

Florida 

Let the Great W arid Spin 

Nothing to See Here 

Saturday 

Lucy Calkins New 29Yes2No 

Lucy Calkins New 30Yes 1 No 

Jennifer Egan New 31Yes0No infrequent language, sexual situations 

Jonathan Safran Foer New 31 Yes0No infrequent language 

Lauren Groff New 31 YesONo 

Cohan McCann New 31 Yes0No 

Kevin Wilson New 31 Yes0No 

IanMcEwan New 31 YesONo infrequent language 

100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



DATE:   June 1, 2020 

TO:   Members of the Board of Education 

FROM:   Heather Michaud, Director of Fiscal Affairs 

SUBJECT:  FY 2020/2021 - Lease Purchase Agreement for Instructional Computers 

This memorandum requests endorsement by the Board of Education to seek approval from the Town 
Council and Board of Finance to enter into a lease purchase agreement covering instructional computers. 

Avon Public Schools requires 880 Chrombooks, 750 will seve as replacement devices for euipment that is 
at end of life and 130 will be distributed to Kindergarten classrooms, moving away from a shared cart 
model. 

At this time, the Board has negotiated financing terms and the annual lease payment is $70,625.00, over 
four years, totaling $282,500.00.  The selection of HP computers, through Trinity3 Technology, comes 
after Administration experienced a positive execution of procurement and lease last fiscal year.  In 
addition, Trinity3 Technology was able to maintain its approved contract with The Interlocoal Purchasing 
System (TIPS), offering competitive pricing and lease options.   

Thank you for considering this request. 

156



Lease Proposal 
May 29, 2020 

Lessee Lessor 
Town of Avon, CT Schools Trinity3 Financial Services 
34 Simsbury Rd. 
Avon, CT 06001 

Equipment to be Leased 
880 HP Chromebooks, Trinity3 Quote SQ15097 

Option  Equipment Cost Lease Term Lease Charge Interest Rate 

      1         $263,120.00       4 Years $1BO – Annual Pmts.  $ 70,625.00      4.95% 

Fees 
Lessor will not charge any documentation, administrative or legal fees. 

Anticipated Delivery 
During the installation period, rent will be charged only on the Equipment accepted by Lessee. Once all the Equipment is installed and 
accepted, the lease will commence at the beginning of the next month.   

End of Lease Options 

At the end of the $1.00 buyout lease, title transfers to lessee provided all terms of the lease agreement have been fulfilled. 

Contingencies 
This proposal and the Lease Agreement are subject to final credit and pricing approval by Lessor. Lessee shall pay the equivalent of one 
month’s lease charge as a refundable security deposit. 

Proposal Expiration: 
July 31, 2020 

We appreciate your consideration of Trinity3 Financial Services and look forward to partnering with you on this project.  Please do not 
hesitate to call me should you have any questions regarding this proposal.   

Sincerely, 

Michael J. Sepp 

Managing Director 
msepp@vantagefncl.com 
(914) 720-0220

157

mailto:msepp@vantagefncl.com


Sales Quote SQ015097 

May 14, 2020 
Page  1 / 3 

 www.trinity3.com  855.862.5120 

Sold To: Ship To: 
AVON SCHOOL DISTRICT AVON SCHOOL DISTRICT Trinity3 Technology 

2550 University Ave W 
34 SIMSBURY ROAD 34 SIMSBURY ROAD Suite 315-S 
AVON, CT  06001 AVON, CT  06001 St. Paul, MN  55114 

External Document No. Salesperson Payment Terms 
MATT WALVATNE Net 30 

No. Description MFG Code  Quantity Unit Price Line Amount 

T0004672 HP 11 G8 EE N4000 1.1G 4G 32G 11" CHROME 
4-Year Trinity3 Platinum Warranty

HP  880  299.00  263,120.00 

0000506 GOOGLE CHROMEOS MGT LIC+S EDU 
White Glove Service 

GOOGLE  880 Included Included 

Approved TIPS Contract #200105 
Delivery included.  Please contact Matt with any questions.  Thanks! 

Subtotal  263,120.00 

Total Tax  0.00 

Total US Incl. Tax 263,120.00 

158

http://www.trinity3.com/


Sales Quote SQ015097 

May 14, 2020 
Page  2 / 3 

 www.trinity3.com  855.862.5120 

Trinity3 Technology Return Policy 

Trinity3 Technology, LLC accepts returns within 30 Calendar Days of Shipment. All return orders, regardless of time 
frame, are subject to inspection and may be subject to restocking fees at the discretion of Trinity3. To be eligible for 
a return, your item must be unused and in the same condition and packaging you received it. Trinity3 Technology, 
LLC. does not accept any returns without prior written consent. Licensing and Software sales are final and cannot be 
returned. 

Trinity3, LLC Warranty Statement 

Trinity3 LLC (“Trinity3”) with its principal offices at 2550 University Avenue West, Suite 315-S, St. Paul, MN 55114 is 
providing extended warranty coverage (“Warranty”) for the specific products purchased from Trinity3 on your sales 
quote or sales order.  The Warranty period starts on the date of product delivery and continues until the expiration 
listed on your Trinity3 sales order.  The warranty is limited to the original buyer and is not transferable.   

The Warranty may provide for duplicate coverage already provided to you by other insurance policies or 
manufacturer’s warranties available to you.  You are not required to purchase a Warranty in order to purchase a 
computer or other electronic device from Trinity3. 

What is covered? 

Trinity3 will repair or replace (at our sole discretion) hardware failure and damage by accident for the specific 
serialized system purchased from Trinity3 or the specific technology covered under our extended Warranty (Gold 
Warranty) or upgraded Warranty (Platinum Warranty) during the time frame identified on your Trinity3 sales order.  
Accidental damage protection (“ADP”) is only offered under the Gold & Platinum Warranties and applies only for the 
designated coverage period from the date of original purchase or date of warranty agreement. The warranty 
protection period varies by product type, specific warranty purchased and the specific coverage period indicated on 
the Trinity3 sales order.  For a summary of the differences between coverages, please see the link below.  

www.trinity3.com/Warranty/Warranties 

What are the Claim Limits? 

The Warranty is limited to an individual user accidental damage incident that renders the system unusable. The 
Warranty does not include preventive maintenance, so you should maintain the system or device in accordance with 
the manufacturer’s instructions. ADP is not intended to and does not protect multi-system damage events nor does it 
protect against the following: general use wear and tear, cosmetic wear, vandalism, human/natural disasters 
(including, but not limited to: fire, smoke, flood, power surge and storm-related damages) and laptop battery 
replacement. Platinum Warranty coverage on laptop batteries is three years (on new mobile devices only) with one 
battery replacement from the date of purchase.  

www.trinity3.com/Warranty/Warranties 

What is the Deductible? 

159

http://www.trinity3.com/
http://www.trinity3.com/Warranty/Warranties
http://www.trinity3.com/Warranty/Warranties


Sales Quote SQ015097 

May 14, 2020 
Page  3 / 3 

 www.trinity3.com  855.862.5120 

There is no deductible or any other fees required to fulfill a repair and/or replacement. 

How do I report a Problem? 

In the case of hardware failure or an accidental damage event, loss or theft, we can provide simple and fast help.  Call 
Trinity3 Customer Service at 1-855-862-5120 or submit online;  

www.trinity3.com/warranty/add 

Submissions must be reported in a timely manner and please be prepared to provide the serial number and 
description of the problem or defect.    

Trinity3 repairs all products at our technical facility located in St. Paul, MN.  Unless a claim is for loss or theft, 
returning the original device is required. Trinity3 will provide you with a prepaid shipping label for you to return your 
device to Trinity 3. Failure to return your original device to Trinity3 will result in additional charges for the non-
returned equipment. 

Trinity3 service technicians located at the Trinity3 technical center: 650 Pelham Blvd, Suite 600, St. Paul, MN 55114 
will assess the device and take appropriate action to repair and/or replace the hardware failure, once the product is 
returned.    

Repairs and/or replacements may be fulfilled with new or reconditioned equipment. Reconditioned equipment may 
have minor cosmetic flaws.  Replacement of accessories may be with generic or non-original manufacturer 
accessories. If the exact model is not available, the replacement will be of like kind and quality but you will be notified 
in advance if a different model is to be returned.   

Trinity3 will use reasonable efforts to amicably resolve any disputes with respect to our Warranties.  If you have and 
issues or problems with our warranties or your customer experience working with Trinity3, we welcome and invite 
you to contact your sales and/or customer service representative to reach a positive outcome.   

www.trinity3.com/OurTeam/ContactUs 

160

http://www.trinity3.com/
http://www.trinity3.com/warranty/add
http://www.trinity3.com/OurTeam/ContactUs


Priority Description Expense PO# Account Transfer Notes

1

Special Education Escrow Account

        Student A ($51,400.00)

        Student B ($250,104.00)

        Student C ($40,950.40)

        Student D ($80,288.60)

*Student E Pending Execution (approx $62,000.00)

484,743.00 PO# 202047 01.8.1200.564 N/A

2

PPE

     Disposable Masks

 Reusable Masks

 Face Shields

 Hand Sanitizer

 Social Distancing Floor Markings

 Cleaning Supplies

 Plexiglass Dividers 39,180.00 Various 01.8.2660.600 #2020-114

3 Bottle Fillers (18) 27,000.00 01.8.2500.430 #2020-114

4 Temperature Scanners (12) 38,400.00 01.8.2660.730 #2020-114

5

Chromebooks

        Preschool

        Kindergarten

        Tutors / TAs 21,187.00 01.8.1100.730 #2020-113

350 Chromebooks funded primarily through 

CARES Act Funds totaling $83,463.00

6 Securly 58,446.00 01.8.2510.650 #2020-113
Web filtering for 1:1 Chromebooks / replace 

Gaggle & Anonymous Alerts (3 Year License)

7 Online Subscriptions to Support Learning 38,031.00 01.8.2510.650 #2020-113
Boclips (KD-12) / Freckle (KD-6) Math & ELA / 

Soundtrap (7-12)

8 Universal Assessment Platform 26,544.00 01.8.2510.650 #2020-113 3 Year License (aimswebPlus)

9 ELA Materials 51,584.22 01.?.1104.611 #2020-113 Reading Writing Workshop

10

Textbooks
        AMS Science

        AHS English Language Arts

        AHS Social Studies

        TBS Math

        AHS Business 82,065.25 Various 01.?.11??.641 #2020-113

Grade 7 Science / ECE ELA / Social Studies 

Elective

11 K-1 Phonemic Awareness Materials (RBS / PGS) 2,991.52 01.?.1104.611 #2020-113

12 Leveled Readers / Classroom Libraries (AMS) 30,000.00 01.2.1104.611 #2020-113 7th / 8th Grade

13
Shared Read / Read Aloud (K-2) & Picture Bookshelves (3-5)

39,711.00 Various 01.?.1104.611 #2020-113

14
MERAKI - 5 Year License Renewal 76,890.70 01.8.2510.650 #2020-113

Wireless Access Points.  Executing a 5 Year 

agreement will save approximately $100K 

compared to a year to year license.

15 Chromebook Charging Stations (RBS) 4,450.00 01.?.2400.734 #2020-113

16 Truck Replacement 60,563.20 01.8.2600.730 #2020-115 Plow truck replacement.

17 Skylight Leak (TBS / PGS) 19,500.00 01.?.2600.430 #2020-115

18 Replacement PA System (TBS) 16,157.09 01.5.2600.430 #2020-115

19 LED Lighting Replacement Project (AMS) 21,000.00 01.2.2600.430 #2020-115

20 Security Alarm (RBS) 28,155.75 01.3.2600.430 #2020-115

21 Security Alarm (AMS) 16,120.52 01.2.2600.430 #2020-115

22 HVAC Control System (AMS) 27,832.23 01.2.2600.430 #2020-115

23
Furniture - AHS

 Desks & Chairs 6,463.50 01.1.1100.730 #2020-113
New / Replacements.

24

Furniture - AMS

        Tables / Stools / Library & Music Room Chairs / Classroom Library 

Shelves 10,304.67 01.2.1100.730 #2020-113

New / Replacements.

25
Furniture - RBS

 Tables / Chairs / Dry Erase Boards 6,121.88 01.3.1100.730 #2020-113
New / Replacements.

26
Furniture - PGS

 Tables / Chairs / Bulletin Boards / Lateral Files 14,218.74 01.6.1100.730 #2020-113
New / Replacements.

27
Furniture - TBS

 Conference Room Tables / Chairs 15,121.84 01.5.1100.730 #2020-113
New / Replacements.

Total 1,262,783.11

Avon Public Schools

Year End Encumbrance List - FY 2019/2020

161



6146(a) 

Instruction 

Graduation Requirements 

Graduation from Avon Public Schools means (1) that students have satisfactorily completed the 
prescribed courses of study in accordance with their respective abilities to achieve, (2) that they have 
satisfactorily passed any examinations and satisfactorily demonstrated the district’s performance 
standards, assessed in part by the statewide mastery examinations, established by the faculty and 
approved by the Avon Board of Education, and (3) that they have fulfilled the legally mandated 
number and distribution of credits.   

Ending with Class of 2018 

Statement 

To graduate from the Avon Public Schools, a student must earn a minimum of 22.5 course credits to 
graduate.   

Guidelines 
A. Course Credit Requirements for Graduation

1. The total number of course credits must include the following:
English 4.0 credits 
Social Studies 3.0 credits1 
Mathematics 3.0 credits 
Science 3.0 credits2 
Physical Education/Wellness 1.0 credits 
Fine Arts 1.0 credit 
Humanities Elective 0.5 credit 
Elective Courses 7.0 credits 

2. Students who transfer to Avon High School following their sophomore year may be
allowed to graduate with less than the number of required credits provided that they
were meeting the promotion requirements at the school they were attending in grades
9 and 10. However, the students must meet the graduation requirements specified by
Connecticut General Statutes and the course and credit requirements for grades 11 and
12 at Avon High School.

__________________________ 
Ending with the Class of 2018: 
1The social studies requirement includes 1.5 course credits in World History, 1.0 course credits in U.S. History and .5 

course credits in American Government/Civics. 
2One credit of the three required must include Biology. 

162



6146(b) 

Instruction 

Graduation Requirements  

Ending with Class of 2018 (continued) 

3. All high school students are required to take a minimum of five courses each semester
excluding physical education. The principal may permit a student to carry fewer
courses for a defensible reason. Seniors may designate up to .5 credit each semester
on a pass/fail basis as long as the course is not required for graduation and the credit
for the course exceeds the total number of course credits required for graduation.

Beginning Ending with Class of 201922 

Statement 

To graduate from the Avon Public Schools, a student must earn a minimum of 22.5 course credits to 
graduate.  

Guidelines 

A. Course Credit Requirements for Graduation
1. The total number of course credits must include the following:

English 4.0 credits 
Social Studies  3.5 credits1 
Mathematics  3.0 credits 
Science 3.0 credits2 
STEM Elective 1.0 credit 
Wellness  1.0 credit 
Fine Arts 1.0 credit 
World Language 1.0 credit 
Capstone 0.5 credit 
Personal Finance 0.5 credit 
Elective Courses 4.0 credits 

____________________________ 
Beginning Ending with the Class of 201922: 

1The social studies requirement includes 1.0 credit in US History, 2.0 credits in World History and .5 credit in Civics.  
2The science requirement includes 1.0 credit in life science (Biology), 1.0 credit in physical science (Chemistry or Physics) 
and 1.0 credit in Environmental Science. 

163



6146(c) 

Instruction 

Graduation Requirements  

Beginning Ending with Class of 201922 (continued) 

2. Students who transfer to Avon High School following their sophomore year may be
allowed to graduate with less than the number of required credits provided that they
were meeting the promotion requirements at the school they were attending in grades
9 and 10. However, the students must meet the graduation requirements specified by
Connecticut General Statutes and the course and credit requirements for grades 11
and 12 at Avon High School.

3. All high school students are required to take a minimum of five courses each semester
excluding physical education. The principal may permit a student to carry fewer
courses for a defensible reason. Seniors may designate up to .5 credit each semester
on a pass/fail basis as long as the course is not required for graduation and the credit
for the course exceeds the total number of course credits required for graduation.

Beginning with Class of 2023 

Statement 

To graduate from the Avon Public Schools, a student must earn a minimum of 25 course credits to 
graduate.  

Guidelines 

A. Course Credit Requirements for Graduation
1. The total number of course credits must include the following:

English 4.0 credits 
Social Studies  3.5 credits1 
Mathematics  3.0 credits 
Science 3.0 credits2 
STEM Elective 2.5 credit 
Wellness  1.0 credit 
Health & Safety Education 1.0 credit 
Fine Arts 1.0 credit 
World Language 1.0 credit 
Capstone 0.5 credit 
Mastery Based Learning 0.5 credit 
Personal Finance 0.5 credit 
Elective Courses 3.5 credits3 

164



6146(c) 

Instruction 

Graduation Requirements 

Beginning with Class of 2023 (continued) 
_________________________ 
Beginning with the Class of 2023: 

1The social studies requirement includes 1.0 credit in US History, 2.0 credits in World History and .5 credit in Civics.  
2The science requirement includes 1.0 credit in life science (Biology), 1.0 credit in physical science (Chemistry or Physics) 
and 1.0 credit in Environmental Science. 

3The elective requirement includes 0.5 credit in Humanities (English, Social Studies, Fine Arts) 

2. Students who transfer to Avon High School following their sophomore year may be
allowed to graduate with less than the number of required credits provided that they
were meeting the promotion requirements at the school they were attending in grades
9 and 10. However, the students must meet the graduation requirements specified by
Connecticut General Statutes and the course and credit requirements for grades 11
and 12 at Avon High School.

3. All high school students are required to take a minimum of five courses each semester
excluding physical education. The principal may permit a student to carry fewer
courses for a defensible reason. Seniors may designate up to .5 credit each semester
on a pass/fail basis as long as the course is not required for graduation and the credit
for the course exceeds the total number of course credits required for graduation.

Beginning with the graduating class of 2019, tThe Avon Board of Education will provide adequate 
student support and remedial services for students beginning in grade seven (2013-2014 school year).  
Such student support and remedial services shall provide alternate means for a student to complete 
any of the high school graduation requirements, previously listed, or end of the school year 
examinations, if such student is unable to satisfactorily complete any of the required courses or exams.  
Such student support and remedial services shall include, but not be limited to (1) allowing students 
to retake courses in summer school or through an on-line course; (2) allowing students to enroll in a 
class offered at a constituent unit of the state system of higher education, (3) allowing students who 
received a failing score, as determined by the Commission of Education, on an end of the school year 
exam to take an alternate form of the exam; and (4) allowing those students whose individualized 
education plans state that such students are eligible for an alternate assessment to demonstrate 
competency on any of the five core courses through success on such alternate assessment.   

The Avon Board of Education shall create a student success plan for each enrolled student, beginning 
in grade six. Such plan shall include a students’ career and academic choices in grades six to twelve, 
inclusive. 

165



A credit shall consist of not less than the equivalent of a forty-minute class period for each school day 
of a school year except for a credit or part of a credit toward high school graduation earned (1) at an 
institution accredited by the Board of Regents for Higher Education or State Board of Education or 
regionally accredited or (2) through online course work, in accordance with guidelines adopted by 
the State Board of Education. 

166



6146(d) 

Instruction 

Graduation Requirements  

Beginning with Class of 2019 (continued) 

The Avon Board of Education, shall award high school credit to middle school students who 
successfully complete the course requirements for any level I or II course, e.g., Algebra I, Spanish I, 
Spanish II, French I or French II.  Upon receiving a passing grade, each course completed and the 
grade level it was taken will be reflected on the student’s high school transcript, with a pass, but will 
not be calculated in the high school GPA or count towards the high school graduation requirements.  

(cf. 5121 – Examination/Grading/Rating 
(cf. 6111 – School Calendar) 
(cf. 6146.2 – Statewide Proficiency/Mastery Examinations) 
(cf. 6172.6 – Virtual/On-line Courses) 

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes 
10-5c Board examination series pilot program. Issuance of certificate (as
amended by P.A. 13-247)
10-14n State-wide mastery examination. Conditions for reexamination.
Limitation on use of test results. (As amended by Section 115 of PA 14-217)
10-16(l) Graduation exercises. (As amended by P.A. 96-108, An Act
Concerning Student Use of Telecommunication Devices and the
Establishment of Graduation Dates)
10-221a High school graduation requirements. (As amended by P.A. 00-124,
An Act Concerning High School Diplomas and Veterans of World War II, P.A.
00-156, An Act Requiring A Civics Course for High School Graduation, P.A.
08-138, An Act Concerning High School Credit for Private World Language
Courses and Other Subject Areas, P.A. 10-111, An Act Concerning Education
Reform in Connecticut, P.A. 11-135, An Act Concerning Implementation
Dates for Secondary School Reform, P.A. 13-57, An Act Concerning Honorary
Diplomas for Vietnam Veterans, P.A. 13-122, An Act Concerning Minor
Revisions to the Education Statutes, P.A. 13-247, Budget Implementer Bill and
P.A. 15-237, An Act Concerning High School Graduation and P.A. 16-4(SS),
section 310.)
10-233(a) Promotion and graduation policies. (As amended by P.A. 01-166)
P.A. 13-108 An Act Unleashing Innovation in Connecticut Schools.
P.A. 13-247 An Act Implementing Provisions of the State Budget.
P.A. 15-237 An Act Concerning High School Graduation.

167



Policy adopted: February 2, 2017 AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Avon, Connecticut 

168



AVON BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETINGS 
AVON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

2020-2021 CAENDAR   
August – 4 Days September – 20 Days October – 21 Days November – 17 Days 

M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F 

3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2 2 3 4 5 6 

10 11 12 13 14 7 8 9 10 11 5 6 7 8 9 9 10 11 12 13 

17 B 19 20 21 14 B 16 17 18 12 13 14 15 16 16 B 18 19 20 

24 25 6 27 28 21 22 23 24 25 19 B 21 22 23 23 24 25 26 27 

31 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 30 

December – 17 Days January – 18 Days February – 18 Days March – 22 Days 
M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F 

1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 

7 8 9 10 11 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 8 9 10 11 12 

14 B 16 17 18 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 15 B 17 18 19 

21 22 23 24 25 18 B 20 21 22 22 B 24 25 26 22 23 24 25 26 

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 29 30 31 

April – 16 Days May – 20 Days June – 7 Days 180 Instructional Days 
185 Staff Days  M T W Th F M T W Th F M T W Th F 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 KEY 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 7 8 9 10 11 In-service – No School 

12 13 14 15 16 17 B 19 20 21 14 B 16 17 18 Important School Event 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 21 22 23 24 25 Holiday/Vacation – No School 

26 B 28 29 30 31 28 29 30 Half Day – Early Dismissal 

Any unexpected school closings will be made up following the scheduled last day of school 

8/17-21 New Staff Orientation – no school 1/1 New Year’s Day  – no school 

8/24 & 25 
Convocation/Teacher In-service/Teacher Workday - 1/15 Professional Development – no school 
no school 1/18 Martin Luther King Day – no school 

8/26 First Day of School 1/20 Close of the 2nd quarter at AHS & AMS 
9/7 Labor Day – no school 2/15-16 Presidents’ Day Recess– no school  
9/28 Yom Kippur – no school 3/19 Professional Development – no school 
10/12 Columbus Day– no school 4/2 Good Friday – no School 
11/3 Professional Development/Election Day – no school 4/12-16 Spring Recess – no school 
11/25-27 Thanksgiving Recess – no school 5/31 Memorial Day – no school 
12/23 Half Day 6/9 Last Day of School, half day 
12/24-31 Winter Recess – no school 

B Board of Ed Regular Monthly Meetings 

CPP Curriculum & Professional Practices Committee 

F Finance Committee 

P Policy Committee 

FACILITY ADDRESS PHONE HOURS ADMINISTRATOR 
Avon Board of Education 34 Simsbury Road 860-404-4700 7:30-4:00 Dr. Bridget Carnemolla, Superintendent 
Avon High School 510 West Avon Road 860-404-4740 7:40-2:15 Michael Renkawitz, Principal 
Avon Middle School 375 West Avon Road 860-404-4770 7:40-2:15 David Kimball, Principal 
Thompson Brook School 150 Thompson Road 860-404-4870 8:20-2:55 William Duffy, Principal 
Pine Grove School 151 Scoville Road 860-404-4790 8:50-3:25 Jess Giannini, Principal 
Roaring Brook School 30 Old Wheeler Lane 860-404-4810 8:50-3:25 Noam Sturm, Principal 

 Avon Public School Pre-K 30 Old Wheeler Lane 860-404-4710 9:00-3:00 Dr. Kim Mearman, Dir. Pupil Services 

Check the APS website for possible updated information - www.avon.k12.ct.us. 

Draft 6/11/2020 

169


